
Town of Newmarket
Council Information Package

 
 

Index of Attachments
 

Date: March 28, 2024
Pages

General Correspondence Items

1. Town of Aurora Official Plan Update circulation follow up 1

York Region

March 14, 2024

2. Motion regarding solutions to resolve significant financial and
budgetary pressures relating to infrastructure development,
maintenance and repairs

3

Loyalist Township

March 18, 2024

3. Resolution - Social and Economic Prosperity Review 5

Township of South Glengarry

March 19, 2024

4. Species at Risk Act (SARA) - Protection of Chimney Swift (Chaetura
pelagica) and its Habitat

12

Species at Risk Recovery Unit, Canadian Wildlife Services,
Environment and Climate Change Canada

March 19, 2024

5. Operational Budget Funding Resolution 21

Municipality of Powassan

March 20, 2024



6. Highway 413 - Ministry of Transportation - Resolution of Support 23

Municipality of Wawa

March 21, 2024

7. Resolution of Support - Guaranteed Livable Income 24

Municipality of Wawa

March 21, 2024

8. Town of Lincoln Resolution RC-2024-23 re Urgent Need for
Increased Funding for Museums and Libraries

25

Municipality of Wawa

March 21, 2024

9. Yonge Street Improvements, Davis Drive to Green Lane - Project
Update

26

York Region

March 21, 2024

10. Yonge Street Project Update and Spring Newsletter: Towns of
Newmarket and East Gwillimbury

30

York Region

March 21, 2024

11. Cemetery Administration Management Support 34

Township of Clearview

March 22, 2024

12. MSC Res. 2024-043 - Potential Municipal Equipment Operator
Course

44

Township of McMurrich / Monteith

March 22, 2024

13. Resolution - Request to Increase Tile Drain Loan Amount 46

Township of Adelaide Metcalfe

March 25, 2024

2



14. Resolution of Support - Tax Credit Increase for Volunteer
Firefighters

48

Township of Edwardsburgh Cardinal

March 25, 2024

15. 2024-51 re. Supreme Court of Canada Appeal in Sudbury v. Ontario
(Ministry of Labour)

50

Town of Whitby

March 26, 2024

16. Resolution # 50-24 - Memo - Whitby Sustainability Advisory
Committee Request that Council Support the Ontario Energy
Board’s Decision to end the Gas Pipeline Subsidy

53

Town of Whitby

March 26, 2024

17. Concerns raised by former senior managers of PHO regarding the
Auditor General of Ontario’s recommendation to close regional
laboratories

55

Township of Ashphodel-Norwood

March 27, 2024

18. Resolution - Energy Transition 60

Township of Terrace Bay

March 27, 2024

19. Resolution - OGRA & ROMA Combined 62

Township of Terrace Bay

March 27, 2024

20. Resolution - PEC 63

Township of Terrace Bay

March 27, 2024

21. Resolution Regarding access to natural gas in Ontario 65

3



Township of Warwick

March 27, 2024

22. Resolution of Support - Cemetery Transfer/Abandonment
Administration and Management Support

68

Township of Greater Madawaska

March 27, 2024

23. Resolution - Township of Terrace Bay - Greater City of Sudbury to
amend OHSA

71

Township of Terrace Bay

March 27, 2024

24. Support Resolution - Municipalities Retaining Surplus Proceeds
from Tax Sales

73

Township of Alnwick / Haldimand

March 27, 2024

25. Council Direction - Resolution in Support of the Expansion of the
Life Span of Fire Apparatus

75

Tay Valley Township

March 28, 2024

Proclamation, Lighting Requests and Community Flag Raising

1. World Autism Day 77

Proclamation - April 2, 2024

Flag Raising - April 2 to 9, 2024

2. Canadian Cancer Society Daffodil Month 79

Lighting - April 8, 2024 (yellow)

3. Congenital Diaphragmatic Hernia Awareness Day 80

Proclamation - April 19, 2024

Lighting - April 19, 2024 (pink)

4



4. Spanish Language Day 82

Proclamation - April 23, 2024

5. Multiple Chemical Sensitivity Awareness Day 84

Lighting - May 9, 2024 (yellow)

6. World Lupus Day 86

Proclamation - May 10, 2024

7. Lupus Awareness Day 88

Lighting - May 10, 2024 (purple)

8. Fibromyalgia Awareness Day 89

Proclamation - May 12, 2024

Lighting - May 13, 2024 (purple)

Information Reports

INFO-2024-05: Preliminary 2023 Fourth Quarter Investment
Summary

•

INFO-2024-06: Customer Service Department 2023 Year End
Results

•

INFO-2024-07: Pausing the Mulock Station Area Secondary Plan
Study

•

5

https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/INFO-2024-05.pdf
https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/INFO-2024-06.pdf
https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/INFO-2024-07.pdf


From: De Lima, Janai <Janai.DeLima@york.ca> 
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 5:39:10 PM 
Subject: Town of Aurora Official Plan Update circulation follow up  
  

Good Afternoon,  
  
This email is to follow up on the previous circulation email sent with regards to the Aurora 
Official Plan update. Please provide all comments, if any, no later than Thursday March 28, 
2024. 
  
Thank you,  
Janai 
  
  
Good Afternoon, 
  
The Town of Aurora Council adopted their new Official Plan, on January 30, 2024 and it has been 
forwarded to York Region for consideration as the approval authority.    
    
We are circulating this document for your information and to seek any additional input you may have.   
   

The Updated Official Plan:   

        Outlines the goals, objectives, visions, and policies intended to guide land use and development 
in the Town of Aurora to the horizon year of 2051.    

        Outlines policies to guide and manage physical growth and development within the Town of 
Aurora based on existing and anticipated conditions and forecasts.  

  

Some of the key changes and enhancements in the Plan include:   

        Policies to promote and prioritize the provision of affordable housing   

        Directing growth to newly characterized strategic growth areas   

        Focus on gentle intensification within existing residential neighbourhoods   

        Policies for climate change resilience, natural heritage protection and cultural heritage 

preservation   

        Prioritization of active transportation including improvement of sidewalks and cycling 

infrastructure     

   
Please use the following link to access the Town’s adopted version of the Official Plan, along with 

associated map Schedules: January 2024 Aurora OP.pdf (aurora.ca)  

    
In an effort to meet the legislated review timelines for Planning Act applications, we ask that you 

provide your comments no later than Friday March 15, 2024.   
Please reach out to me if there are additional concerns or questions.   
    

1

mailto:Janai.DeLima@york.ca
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/LQp6CXLKyRHWqnh6WKsN?domain=aurora.ca


For more information, and to stay updated on this Official Plan process, visit the Town of Aurora’s 

Official Plan Review page at Engage Aurora.  
   

Thank you,   
Janai  
  
  
Our working hours may be different. Please do not feel obligated to reply outside of your scheduled working hours. Let’s work 
together to help foster healthy work-life boundaries.  
  
Janai De Lima (she/her) | MCIP, RPP, MBA  | Senior Planner, Long Range Planning, Corporate 

Services 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

The Regional Municipality of York | 17250 Yonge Street | Newmarket, ON L3Y 6Z1  

O: 1-877-464-9675 ext. 71569| janai.delima@york.ca | york.ca 

Our Mission: Working together to serve our thriving communities – today and tomorrow 

  

     
  
Please consider the environment before printing this email. 

  
 

2

https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/lp27CYWLzRuwN3FGlJMp?domain=engageaurora.ca
mailto:janai.delima@york.ca
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/v_QKCZYMARH0DMFKXb0w?domain=york.ca/
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/4yl2C1WZ0DulkpcXzuAy?domain=facebook.com
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/uVE2C2xZyEUgRkc9sikr?domain=twitter.com
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/no5EC3Q8zGiOGmIvSSmQ?domain=linkedin.com


3



4



 

 
Township of Puslinch  

7404 Wellington Road 34 
Puslinch, ON N0B 2J0 

www.puslinch.ca 
 

February 27, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
RE:  6.3 The Association of Municipalities of Ontario Policy Update regarding Social and Economic 
Prosperity Review 
 
Please be advised that Township of Puslinch Council, at its meeting held on February 7, 2024 
considered the aforementioned topic and subsequent to discussion, the following was resolved: 
 

Resolution No. 2024-037:   Moved by Councillor Bailey and  
       Seconded by Councillor Sepulis  
 
That the Consent Agenda item 6.3 listed for February 7, 2024 Council meeting be received 
for information; and  
 
WHEREAS current provincial-municipal fiscal arrangements are undermining Ontario’s 
economic prosperity and quality of life; and  
 
WHEREAS nearly a third of municipal spending in Ontario is for services in areas of 
provincial responsibility and expenditures are outpacing provincial contributions by nearly 
$4 billion a year; and  

Hon. Ted Arnott, MPP 
181 St. Andrew St. East 
2nd Floor, Fergus 
ON N1M 1P9 
VIA EMAIL:   
 ted.arnottco@pc.ola.org 

Hon. Sylvia Jones, MPP 
180 Broadway 3rd Floor 
Suite A 
Orangeville, ON L9W 1K3 
VIA EMAIL: 
sylvia.jones@pc.ola.org 
 

Hon. Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
823 Albion Road 
Etobicoke, ON 
M9V 1A3 
VIA EMAIL:  
premier@ontario.ca 
 

 
Hon. Paul Calandra 
Minister of Municipal Affairs 
and Housing 
VIA EMAIL: 
minister.mah@ontario.ca 
 
 

5

http://www.puslinch.ca/
mailto:ted.arnottco@pc.ola.org
mailto:sylvia.jones@pc.ola.org
mailto:premier@ontario.ca
mailto:minister.mah@ontario.ca


 

WHEREAS municipal revenues, such as property taxes, do not grow with the economy or 
inflation; and  
 
WHEREAS unprecedented population and housing growth will require significant 
investments in municipal infrastructure; and  
 
WHEREAS municipalities are being asked to take on complex health and social challenges – 
like homelessness, supporting asylum seekers and addressing the mental health and 
addictions crises; and  
 
WHEREAS inflation, rising interest rates, and provincial policy decisions are sharply 
constraining municipal fiscal capacity; and  
 
 WHEREAS property taxpayers – including people on fixed incomes and small businesses –  

       can’t afford to subsidize income re-distribution programs for those most in need; and  
 
WHEREAS the province can, and should, invest more in the prosperity of communities; and  
 
WHEREAS municipalities and the provincial government have a strong history of 
collaboration; and  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Province of Ontario commit to undertaking with the  
Association of Municipalities of Ontario a comprehensive social and economic prosperity 
review to promote the stability and sustainability of municipal finances across Ontario; and 
further  
 
THAT a copy of this motion be sent to the Premier of Ontario (premier@ontario.ca); 
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing (minister.mah@ontario.ca); the Minister of 
Finance (minister.fin@ontario.ca); the County Clerk, MPP Arnott, MPP Rae, and to the 
Association of Municipalities of Ontario (amo@amo.on.ca).     
      

CARRIED 
 
As per the above resolution, please accept a copy of this correspondence for your information 
and consideration. 
 

6



 

Sincerely,  
 
Justine Brotherston  
Municipal Clerk 
 
CC: Association of Municipalities of Ontario (amo@amo.on.ca), MPP Matthew Rae 
Matthew.Rae@pc.ola.org, the Minister of Finance (minister.fin@ontario.ca)  

7

mailto:amo@amo.on.ca
mailto:Matthew.Rae@pc.ola.org
mailto:minister.fin@ontario.ca


 
 
January 26, 2024 
 
 
Re:  Social and Economic Prosperity Review 
 
Please be advised that the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Orangeville, at its 
Regular Council Meeting held on January 22, 2024, approved the following resolution: 
 

WHEREAS current provincial-municipal fiscal arrangements are 
undermining Ontario’s economic prosperity and quality of life; and 
 
WHEREAS nearly a third of municipal spending in Ontario is for 
services in areas of provincial responsibility and expenditures are 
outpacing provincial contributions by nearly $4 billion a year; and 
 
WHEREAS municipal revenues, such as property taxes, do not 
grow with the economy or inflation; and 
 
WHEREAS unprecedented population and housing growth will 
require significant investments in municipal infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS municipalities are being asked to take on complex 
health and social challenges – like homelessness, supporting 
asylum seekers and addressing the mental health and addictions 
crises; and 
 
WHEREAS inflation, rising interest rates, and provincial policy 
decisions are sharply constraining municipal fiscal capacity; and 
 
WHEREAS property taxpayers – including people on fixed incomes 
and small businesses – can’t afford to subsidize income re-
distribution programs for those most in need; and 
 
WHEREAS the province can, and should, invest more in the 
prosperity of communities; and 
 

8



WHEREAS municipalities and the provincial government have a 
strong history of collaboration; now 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Town of Orangeville 
requests the Province of Ontario commit to undertaking with the 
Association of Municipalities of Ontario a comprehensive social 
and economic prosperity review to promote the stability and 
sustainability of municipal finances across Ontario; and 
 
FURTHER THAT a copy of this motion is sent to the Premier of 
Ontario, Doug Ford; the MPP, Sylvia Jones; and all municipalities 
in Ontario. 

 
Carried. 

 
Yours truly, 

Raylene Martell 
Town Clerk 

9



10



11



�����������	
	�������������������������������������������������������������
������������������� �����!"��#$��%��������������&����'(������������)�������*�� ��'���� �&&��������� ���������  ������������*������� ������������������+,-./-0�12�3/04�5.2�6�7879���������&�����)����������'����:������ ���;����<���%��������'����:�� ���������������������'�;����������� ��� �='���� ��� ����&��' �����&��������������������� ����&�&���)� <������'����: ��'&�����'�� �������� ���������' ������������������ ��� ����������� ���(�;���>(������(������������)��(�;���������� �����'�;�����������)���� �������� � ����� �;�� (� ��� (����� ��� (���)?���������� �����;������;������ <�7��� ���&)��������� &���� @��� ������� ��A���������� �������;������������B��A& BCC &���� D���� ��'<�����<��C���ED�<����FC������� CGGH<�I�;����'�������;���;���� ����'������������������������'����: �� �������� ��������'���������&���;������� <��������������������������������������� ��� �����������' ���������� �������� �� ���;'������'����:���*�����&����������������������'��������;������������������������ ����'���� � ����� �&�������������&����&��J��� <�KLMNO�PQRP�SNTNMNUVWXNOP�VS�VPQNS�XRYVS�WSVYNZP[�\LUU�SN]̂LSN�R�X̂ OLZLWRU�_̂LUTLÒ�WNSXLPa�bV̂S�[PRc�XRb�_N�\NUUdWV[LeVONT�PV�OVefb�PQV[N�WSVYNZP�WSVWVONOP[�Vf�WVPNOeRU�fVS�gQLXONb�h\Li�PV�_N�WSN[NOP�ROT�PQN�UǸRU�V_UL̀ReVO[�̂OTNS�hjkj�\QNO�WSVYNZP[�LOMVUMLÒ�PQN�RUPNSReVO�VS�SNXVMRU�Vf�ZQLXONb[�lVS�[LXLURS�[PŜZP̂SN[m�RSN�_SV̂ Q̀P�fVS\RST�LO�_̂LUTLÒ�WNSXLP�RWWULZReVO[n�!:�(�������� ��������������������������'���������&��&���'���'�;��� ���;'������'����:���������������&��J������'����������&���)��������&������� � &���� <��������������������������������@ ����������������������������&��������  � ���������������������(�����'(����������'���*������� ��E� ��������787<����%��������'����:�� ��� ����� �%��������������;�����787����!�����@ �&���������opq1pr-s-q�+,-./-0�5.2<�t�����787(�������� ���������������������������������������6����9�� ���*���������������&����������'� ������'�����%��������������������� &���� (�������&�������������)� ���������� ��&��������� ��������������<�%���?���3-.uv-sw�+2s12-rw�xus�2y-�zy/{p-w�+|/}�/p�z1p1q1�&������ �������)���;�������� &���� (����)?� ���J��������� �������� &���� ������ ���;����(������������ � �������� ������ �������������������� &���� <�~��� �������;����������&���� ����8� >�I�;����8��� ��'B��A& BCC &���� D���� ��'<�����<��C���ED�<����FC�� ����)� C	�H�<���%������������787������ ���� ��� ���������&�����)������������'���� &���� ������ >��������<�~������� �&����;�)� ����� ������>�����(�������(�����  ��(���&�����(���>��(�&�  �  ��(�������)�(�;�'��(� ���������������������������� ������������(���������������E)�&����� &���� ��� ������

12



� �

���������	�
���������������������������
��
�����������
�����
���������������������
����������
��
�������������������������������������������������������������� !"#$%&#'�(!#)*�+&,-.,/&,�01%��234�����
���
����������4�����5����6�������������������������������
����
����������7���������234�����5������8���������
�5������������
�������4�������9�
8���������
����
���������������
������
�����5�������:����
���;���������
���������
8������
������
����
��
������4�����5����6������������������
����
�������������
8��5��
��5
������
����
�<��=��<>>�������������>��>��8��
�����?�������?������>���8����>�������?���@?������?�������5>�������?���
����
�>A����
��?�������?�
����8��
�?������5?���6���������B���
������������������5
���
�������������
�
��������������������������@�������8���������������C������������������������������������
������
��
������������<��=��<>>�������������>��>��8��
�����?�������?������>���8����>�������?���@?������?�������5>�������?���
����
�>������5?���6?�
����8��
�?�����D���������E�@���������
�
�����������
������F444?4B�������������
�����
G����������
����8������
����7������D����H�������
���
�����������A�������������������5����
������
8���������A�����������9�
�
�����������
����������2������5�
������F�8��
�������4
����8��
������9��@���2F49���
���
������
����
�<��7I�����
G
�����
�����������@�5
���
��5
�������
���������������
����
8�����������������H��5
����8����5�A����
��������������������A��������������
��������������7��@�I�����
G����������
����������
������������
������������5����4��������B�����������8����J�I�����
�7���
��F�8��
����������4�������4������4�������KLMNOPQR�S�TUVWXYZ[Y\]�\̂�_UVỲU]WU�̂\X�[aU�baYc]Ud�efŶ[�ghijklmnj�okpjqrsjt�Y]�bu]ùu�

13



��������	
��������
�������

���

������������������� ����������!��"!�#��$�%&����'()*+,-.*�/+0*123*4����"5�5 5��6���5���789:;<=�>>�<?�:@8�ABCDECF�GH�IEFJ�KDH�L7MNMO�PQ<@;R;:S�TUVUW;=W�<Q�T8S:Q<X;=W�:@8�Q8S;T8=98�<?�<=8�<Q�V<Q8�;=T;Y;TZU[S�<?�U�[;S:8T�:@Q8U:8=8T\�8=TU=W8Q8T\�<Q�8]:;QPU:8T�SP89;8S�;?�U�Q89<Y8QX�S:QU:8WX�@US�Q89<VV8=T8T�:@8�Q8̂;=:Q<TZ9:;<=�<?�:@8�SP89;8S�;=:<�:@8�_;[T�;=�̀U=UTU�abcdcefgcd�hijkgcl�mjilijfc�kncojckpqr�7MNM�T8?;=8S�Q8S;T8=98�USs�tu�vwxyyz{|}B~GDC��F�D��GF�G��C����CFH�����H�C��FE�E~G��G�CG����B~GDC��H�GH�EF��DD�BEC������G�EH�G~~���DD�BEC�������C�������C�E��E�E��G~F����E���G~~����BG�H����H�CE��~E�C�D�D~CF��E�D~��E�����CC�E�����CG�E����FHG�E�����E�HC�E�����CC�E�������E�C��GHE�����k��a�q�����@8�PQ<@;R;:;<=�9<V8S�;=:<�8??89:�;=�T;??8Q8=:�_UXS�T8P8=T;=W�<=�:@8��ZQ;ST;9:;<=�_;:@�<Y8QU[[�VU=UW8V8=:�Q8SP<=S;R;[;:X�?<Q�:@8�SP89;8S�U=T�<=�:@8�[<9U:;<=�<?�:@8�Q8S;T8=98r���;:@�Q8SP89:�:<�U�[;S:8T�_;[T[;?8�SP89;8S�:@U:�;S�U=�U�ZU:;9�SP89;8S�<Q�U�SP89;8S�<?�R;QT�PQ<:89:8T�Z=T8Q�:@8��E��GH�����E��F�����C�HE���KDH������\�:@8�PQ<@;R;:;<=�UPP[;8S�UZ:<VU:;9U[[X�ZP<=�[;S:;=W�_@8Q8Y8Q�:@8�Q8S;T8=98S�UQ8�?<Z=T�;=�̀U=UTUr��<Q�U=X�<:@8Q�[;S:8T�_;[T[;?8�SP89;8S\�:@8�PQ<@;R;:;<=�UPP[;8S�UZ:<VU:;9U[[X�_@8=�:@8�Q8S;T8=98�<?�:@8�SP89;8S�;S�<=�?8T8QU[�[U=TS�;=�U�PQ<Y;=98\�<Q�<=��=Y;Q<=V8=:�U=T�̀[;VU:8�̀@U=W8�̀U=UTU�<Q�:@8��UQ S�̀U=UTU�MW8=9X�[U=TS�;=�U�:8QQ;:<QX\�U=T�_;[[�<=[X�UPP[X�<=�<:@8Q�[U=TS�;?�U=�<QT8Q�;S�VUT8�PZQSZU=:�:<�S89:;<=S�>¡�<Q�>¢�<?�7MNMr�£=T8Q�S89:;<=�¤¥�<?�7MNM�8Y8QX�P8QS<=�_@<�9<=:QUY8=8S�S89:;<=�>>�<?�:@8�M9:�9<VV;:S�U=�<??8=98r��£=T8Q�7MNM\�:@8�TUVUW8�<Q�T8S:QZ9:;<=�<?�:@;S�V;WQU:<QX�R;QT�SP89;8Sp�Q8S;T8=98�;S�PQ<@;R;:8T�UZ:<VU:;9U[[X�<=�U[[�[U=TS�;=�̀U=UTUr�7MNM�PQ<Y;T8S�:@U:�P8QV;:S�VUX�R8�;SSZ8T�?<Q�U9:;Y;:;8S�:@U:�U??89:�U�[;S:8T�_;[T[;?8�SP89;8S\�;:S�9Q;:;9U[�@UR;:U:�<Q�Q8S;T8=98S�<?�;:S�;=T;Y;TZU[S\�Z=T8Q�98Q:U;=�9<=T;:;<=Sr�7MNM�U[S<�PQ<Y;T8S�8]98P:;<=S�?<Q�98Q:U;=�U9:;Y;:;8S�:@U:�Q8[U:8�:<�PZR[;9�SU?8:X\�@8U[:@�<Q�=U:;<=U[�S89ZQ;:X�?<Q�U9:;Y;:;8S�UZ:@<Q;¦8T�Z=T8Q�<:@8Q�?8T8QU[�[8W;S[U:;<=r��@8�P8QV;::;=W�S9@8V8�<Q�UR<Y8�V8=:;<=8T�8]98P:;<=�VUX�UPP[X\�T8P8=T;=W�<=�:@8�SP89;?;9S�<?�:@8�S;:ZU:;<=\�_;:@�Q8SP89:�:<�VU;=:8=U=98�<Q�V<T;?;9U:;<=�<?�U=�8];S:;=W�VU=̂VUT8�S:QZ9:ZQ8�Q89<W=;S8T�US�U�Q8S;T8=98r���@8�?<[[<_;=W�;S�U�T8S9Q;P:;<=�<?�Q8S;T8=98�?<Q�:@8�̀@;V=8X�7_;?:�L��GCH��G�BC~G�EDGO�9Q8U:8T�?<Q�:@8�PZQP<S8S�<?�;=9Q8US;=W�PZR[;9�U_UQ8=8SS�U=T�S:8_UQTS@;P\�U=T�8=@U=9;=W�9<=S8QYU:;<=�<?�:@8�SP89;8S�RX�PQ<V<:;=W�9<VP[;U=98�_;:@�:@8�UR<Y8̂=<:8T�PQ<@;R;:;<=r�̀@;V=8X�7_;?:S�UQ8� =<_=�:<�@UY8�:_<�:XP8S�<?�Q8S;T8=98Ss�:@8�S:QZ9:ZQ8�@<ZS;=W�:@8�=8S:�L;=9[ZT;=W�:@8�=8S:O�U=T�:@8�S:QZ9:ZQ8�ZS8T�?<Q�Q<<S:;=W�LQ<<S:�S;:8Or��§99US;<=U[[X\�U�S;=W[8�S:QZ9:ZQ8�9U=�S8QY8�:<�@<ZS8�:@8�=8S:�?<Q�U�PU;Q�<?�̀@;V=8X�7_;?:S�U=T�US�U�Q<<S:�S;:8�?<Q�<:@8Q�̀@;V=8X�7_;?:Sr���%̈ ##5�$���@8�̀@;V=8X�7_;?:�@US�:_<�Q8S;T8=98Ss�L©O�:@8�S:QZ9:ZQ8�@<ZS;=W�:@8�=8S:�L;=9[ZT;=W�:@8�=8S:�TZQ;=W�:@8�=8S:;=W�P8Q;<TO�ZS8T�RX�:@8�̀@;V=8X�7_;?:�:<�S@8[:8Q�?Q<V�PQ8TU:<QS�U=T�;=9[8V8=:�_8U:@8Q�US�_8[[�US�?<Q�[UX;=W�U=T�;=9ZRU:;=W�8WWS\�U=T�Q8UQ;=W�X<Z=Wª�L«O�:@8�S:QZ9:ZQ8�ZS8T�?<Q�Q<<S:;=W�LQ<<S:�S;:8O�_@;9@�PQ<Y;T8S�U�P[U98�:<�Q8S:�U=T�S[88P�:@U:�;S�S@8[:8Q8T�U=T�PQ<:89:8T�?Q<V�PQ8TU:<QSr�7Z;:UR[8�S:QZ9:ZQ8S�UQ8�<?:8=�9@;V=8XS�VUT8�<?�VUS<=QX�<Q�S;V;[UQ�Y8Q:;9U[�S:QZ9:ZQ8S�_;:@�U�Q<ZW@�<Q�P<Q<ZS�;==8Q�SZQ?U98�U=T�U�TUQ �;=:8Q;<Qr�7:QZ9:ZQ8S�ZS8T�?<Q�Q<<S:;=W�UQ8�W8=8QU[[X�[UQW8Q�:@U=�<=8S�ZS8T�?<Q�=8S:;=Wr�¬8S:;=W�U=T�Q<<S:;=W�S:QZ9:ZQ8S�UQ8�9<=S;T8Q8T�U�Q8S;T8=98�X8UQ�UQ<Z=T�U=T�Q8VU;=�U�Q8S;T8=98�Z=:;[�:@8�SP89;8S�@US�=<:�ZS8T�:@8V�?<Q�=8S:;=W�<Q�Q<<S:;=W�?<Q�:@Q88�9<=S89Z:;Y8�X8UQSr��@8�=8S:�;S�U�Q8S;T8=98�<=[X�TZQ;=W�:@8�=8S:;=W�S8US<=�U=T�;S�=<�[<=W8Q�U�Q8S;T8=98�U?:8Q�;:�;S�URU=T<=8T�;=�[U:8�SZVV8Qr���

14



��������	
��������
�������

���

�������������� !������

���"#$%&'�()�*&''+#,$�&-,$'�./�01'�21#3,'4�56#/0�#,�2-,-+-�7$&'4�81-+#,$9�7:222�;<;;9)���=>���!�?�!?���@�?���A�!B��C��!�D���E?F��A�!B��C��!>��GBH��� E�I��� � ���� �F�J��!�K!�L1'�80&%M0%&'�1.%8#,$�01'�21#3,'4�56#/0�,'80N�#,MO%+#,$�01'�,'80�#08'O/N�61'&'�01'�21#3,'4�56#/0�O-48�'$$8�-,+�1-0M1'8�4.%,$�#8�M.,8#+'&'+�-�&'8#+',M')�L1'�21#3,'4�56#/0�P%#O+8�#08�,'80�6#01#,�1.OO.6�Q'&0#M-O�80&%M0%&'8)�L1'�#,0'&#.&�Q'&0#M-O�8%&/-M'�./�01'�80&%M0%&'�3%80�P'�&.%$1�.&�R.&.%8N�0.�-OO.6�01'�21#3,'4�56#/0�0.�-00-M1�#08�,'80�%8#,$�#08�8-O#Q-N�61#M1�1-8�-+1'8#Q'�R&.R'&0#'8�7"#8M1'&�(STUV�50''Q'8�WX�YZ)�;<([9)�L1'�1-O/\8-%M'&\81-R'+�,'80�#8�3-+'�/&.3�83-OO�+'-+�06#$8�7;�\�T�M3�O.,$9�01-0�01'�P#&+�R%OO8�.//�01'�M&.6,8�./�0&''8�6#01�#08�/''0)�L1'�,'80�#8�83-OON�-RR&.]#3-0'O4�T)<�\�̂)T�M3�6#+'�7/&.,0�0.�P-M_9�P4�(<�M3�O.,$�7&#$10�0.�O'/0�8#+'�-Q'&-$'9�P4�;)T�\�̀)(�M3�+''R)�a&#.&�0.�:%&.R'-,�8'00O'3',0N�01'�21#3,'4�56#/0�,'80'+�-,+�&..80'+�3-#,O4�#,8#+'�1.OO.6�0&''8�-,+�.MM-8#.,-OO4�.,�M-Q'�6-OO8�-,+�#,�&.M_4�M&'Q#M'8�7b-M_�(STcV�"#8M1'&�(STUV�L%/08�(SUcV�d.+/&'4�(SUcV�:&8_#,'�(SS;9)�e.6'Q'&N�6#01�01'�-&&#Q-O�./�:%&.R'-,8�#,�f.&01�g3'&#M-N�/.&'80�MO'-&#,$�']R-,+'+�-,+�O-&$'�0&''8�P'M-3'�#,M&'-8#,$O4�8M-&M'�7b'Q'&'00�(SScV�h&%81_-�;<<<9)�21#3,'4�56#/08�&-R#+O4�-+.R0'+�8%#0-PO'�1%3-,\3-+'�80&%M0%&'8�/.&�,'80#,$�-,+�&..80#,$�8%M1�-8�M1#3,'48N�$&-#,�8#O.8N�M#80'&,8N�6'OO8N�P-&,8N�-P-,+.,'+�1.%8'8�-,+�P.-01.%8'8�7')$)N�i-Mf-3-&-�(S(UV�2.//'4�(S̀ cV�b-M_�(STcV�"O'M_',80'#,�(SScV�5,.6�-,+�a'&&#,8�(SSUV�50''Q'8�WX�YZ)�;<([9)�g3.,$�01'8'�80&%M0%&'8N�M1#3,'48�-&'�01'�3.80�-P%,+-,0�-,+�P4�/-&�01'�3.80�/&'j%',0O4�%8'+�P4�01'�21#3,'4�56#/0)�L1'�M1#3,'48�%8'+�-&'�3.80�./0',�M.,80&%M0'+�./�80.,'N�P&#M_N�M.,M&'0'�.&�M'&-3#M�0#O')�b-&$'�M1#3,'48N�$','&-OO4�1-Q#,$�-,�.R',#,$�+#-3'0'&�$&'-0'&�01-,�;U)T�M3N�8%M1�-8�01.8'�.,�M1%&M1'8N�8M1..O8N�M.,Q',08N�M.33'&M#-O�P%#O+#,$8�-,+�1.%8'8�-&'�./0',�%8'+�7d-%01#'&�WX�YZ)�;<<̂ V�"#$%&'�;9)�g0�8#0'8�.01'&�01-,�M1#3,'48N�01'�P#&+8�3-4�-MM'88�01'�,'80�P4�-�Q',0#O-0#.,�6'OON�-�P&._',�6#,+.6�.&�-�R'&3-,',0O4\.R',�+..&)���50&%M0%&'8�#,�01'�,-0%&-O�',Q#&.,3',0�-&'�-O8.�80#OO�%8'+N�8%M1�-8�O-&$'�O#Q#,$�.&�+'-+�0&''8�6#01�1.OO.6�0&%,_8�704R#M-OO4�k�T<�M3�#,�+#-3'0'&�-0�P&'-80�1'#$10�7h*e9�72l5:mn2�;<(U99N�

15



��������	
��������
�������

���

������������������������ ������!""�#��$�%��&'()*+*,-.�,/0123-.45��6��%"�$��%�������&789:!;7�<=>?@A���:����6����B�������%C��C%�����C���������%�����6���D"%�6����6E��6� C������%����6��%�6E��B����%C��C%����%��FC��$ ���6������%��� �5�G��B�%�#�������"H�6E��6��E"�6E�"D���C ����6��%"������ �EB�5�����6��%�� ����%��6E�D%"H�D�����"�>I�H�6C����&J�C�B��%�13�20K�<==L@A��MNOPQRSO�T�%���� ���%C��C%��5��6� C��6E��B�H6���5�#%"���������%$�# ����D"%��B��6���5��B� ��%���D%"H��6� �H�6��G���B�%��6��#%����"%�A�UB��6�������� D�D"%H�����"6���6�%��6�GB��B��B��7B�H6���9G�D����6� ����6���6�C����������EE���6��%����������B��$�A�86����%�E�5���6����B" ���D"C%��EE��&%�6E���G"��"������EE�@A�V"�B�H�H��%��"D��B��#��%��6�C������B���EE���6��D�����B���B��$�A�;6�������"65�"�B�%���C ���D%�FC�6� ��B� #�G��B��B�������$�A�UB��6������$���� "����"�>?������"%�H"%���"��C� �A�UB���EEW ���6E�#�%�"����6���%���6��H�����$����"C������6������D"%���� C��B�"D�D"C%��EE�5���6����EE���%��E�6�%�  �� ���������%����"D�"6�����%���G"������&789:!;7�<==L@A�;6�C����"6���$���"6����%�E��>X������&Y���B�%�>XI?Z�9�������13�20A�<=>[@A�UB���B��$��%�H��6��6��B��6����D"%��6����%�E��"D�>X�����5��D��%�GB��B��B��� ���������C���"6��6C��E%"G�6E�GB� ��� �6E�6E��"��B���6�����G�  �"D��B����%C��C%��B"C��6E��B��6����&Y���B�%�>XI?@A�UB���B��$�������� �6E�6E��"��B����%C��C%��C6�� ��B����%���� ���"���$���B��%�D�%���D �EB��&9�������13�20A�<=>[@5���#���  �����\=������"D��E��&Y���B�%�>XI?@A�UB�����6��B�6��"H�����$��"��B����%C��C%��B"C��6E��B��6����D"%��6"�B�%�"6��"%��G"�G��$��&9�������13�20A�<=>[@A���]̂ _^̀ a�Sb�]acQbNPQRSO�Sd�Qea�facRgaOPa��h�H�E��"%�����%C���"6�"D���%�����6��������D�6�������6��� ��%���"6��"��B���"#"E%�#B�5�E�" "E�5��"� ��"6����"6�5���E�����"65��B�H��� ��"H#"����"6�"D���%iG���%5��C%D����"%�E%"C6�G���%�B��%" "E�5�H��%"W� �H���5�"%��"C6���6��%"6H�6��GB��B����B�%���H#"%�%� ��"%�#�%H�6�6� ���H#��%���B��DC6���"6&�@�"D��B��%�����6���"D�"6��"%�H"%���6�����C� �A��j�����������B���H�����H�E��"%�����%"���B����%C��C%��B"C��6E��B��6�����6� C��5��C���%��6"�� �H������"k�W��B�6E�6E��B��H��%"W� �H����"D��B����%C��C%��B"C��6E��B��6����&�AEA�%�#��%���"����B�H6����B����B�6E����%�D "G��6���6��%6� ���H#�%��C%�@Z��W�H"��D��6E��B����%C��C%��B"C��6E��B��6����&��AEA���� �6�6E��B���6��%�"%�"D����B�H6���G��B�H��� @Z�W�� "�$�6E���������"��B��6����"%���%C��C%�Z�W�H"��6E�"%�"�B�%G��������C%��6E��B����%C��C%��"%�6���Z�W�����%"��6E��B����%C��C%��B"C��6E��B��6���Z�"%��W��6��"�B�%�����������B���G"C ��6�E����� ���DD�����B��DC6���"6�"D��B����%C��C%��C����D"%�6����6EA��labRSg�̂Og�MbamNaOPn�Sd�oPPNp̂ OPn��UB��#�%�"��"D�#"���� ��"��C#�6���"D��B����%C��C%��B"C��6E��B��6���������"C��D"C%�H"6�B�5�D%"H��B����E�66�6E�"D�q����"��B����E�66�6E�"D�9�#��H��%A�7B�H6���9G�D�����E�6��"��%%�����6�7�6��������B���6��"D�j#%� �"%��6���% ��q���&9�������13�20A�<=>[@A�86����B��6�������������� �����5��B����%���G�  ����%���B��6����6E�����"6�GB��B�C�C�  ������6���D%"H� ����q����"�q��WjCEC���&789:!;7�<=>?@A�h�#�6��6E�"6��B�� "����"65��B��D�  �H�E%���"6�#�%�"�����D%"H� ����rC ���"� ����9�#��H��%�&789:!;7�<=>?@A�UB��H�s"%����"D�7B�H6���9G�D���B���� �D��D"%��B��%�G�6��%�6E�E%"C6������8��"��%5�� �B"CEB����H�  �6CH��%�"D���%���%�H��6�C6�� ��B���6��"D��B���H"6�B��6��B���"C�B�%6H"���#�%��"D�86��%�"�&V�%���7�6���5�C6#C� ��B�������@A���UB��7B�H6���9G�D���%����6E�#��%���B��������%"6E�D��� �����"��B����%C��C%��B"C��6E��B��6�����6���"6��FC�6� ����6����"�%��C%6����B����%��"��B����H����%C��C%��&h����%�>XX<Z�Y���B�%�>XI?@A�UB��6�������� D����%�%� ��%�C�����6��C���FC�6�����%���6��"D��6�D�  ���"G6���D"%���B��6�����%����6E�����"6�&9�������13�20A�<=>[A@Z��B�%�D"%�5�C6��%�9jtj5��B��6�������#�%��"D��B��%�����6���"6 ��GB�6�"��C#���>5��B�%�D"%��D%"H�q����"�9�#��H��%�"D��B�����%�C���A��� �u�vww�x��y��
�y�z���y��
��{��x	�
��w���z������	�|�	���y�����}������	����~��������

16



��������	
��������
�������

���

���������������� ��!"�!����#! $�%������� ��$ �"#� $������&��� $���"�����#!%�#!������'�&��(�"&! ������)�$*��'��+$,��$ �-$.�-'��#����!����/��'�'�&���#����� &*�� ��!"�!���01�2����34456�7&!��$���89�:;<�5==>?<�@��� ��!"�!����#! $�%������� ����*&$� �&��� $���"��,�#*�'�&���#�'�&��&���!��$-�������$ ��#"!*�������/$���"����&������ A�"$� ��& ��#��! ������� ��!"�!����#! $�%������� ��,#��������"#� �"!�$/��'�&� <�@�$ �A��$#��+& ������*$����(& ���#���/$���"�� �#+$�%����&������)�$*��'��+$,��+$--���! ��&� ��!"�!���,#���� �$�%��/���&,����&�5�'�&��&( ��"��A��$#��&��� #*��$*� �*#�����&��5�'�&� �0B)))�5=34?<�C!�����*#��������&/��&%��-$,� A&��,#��)�$*��'��+$,� �$ �D<E�'�&� �&�������($�� ��#��#����"�  &�$-'���A�#�!"��$�����$��,$� ��'�&�6������,#����#��&/��&%���&�($���$ �-$.�-'��#���A�#�!"��,#��&�A��$#��#,�&(#!��F�'�&� �#/���$� �-$,��$*�<��( ��"�� �#!-��(��"#�,$�*���! $�%�&� �&��&���A�#�#"#-�,�#*�#���#,�����)�$*��'��+$,��G#�$�#�$�%�A�#%�&* �$��)&�&�&�&�������*#�$�#�$�%�*! ���&.��A-&"�����#!%�#!������(����$�%� �& #�<�H��I��&�$#�&�������G&�$�$*� ��A-�& ��/$ $��J$�� �)&�&�&�K���A LMM+++<($�� "&�&�&<#�%M($��N "$��"�M +$,�+&�"�?��$��G&�$�#(&�&����& .&�"��+&���/$ $����������G&�$�#(&�)�$*��'��+$,��H�$�$&�$/��0���A LMM+++<*("�$*��' +$,�<"#*M�� #!�"� N&��N-$�. M?��&���$��O!P(�"�������%�#!A�*����O!P(�"I$ �&!2�0���A LMM"��<"&<'&A-&<"#*M"#*A&�'M)QR)�4@ -GSTU�V+W�XQHY�1#M&  ��M,$-� MQ�#�#"#-�NG&��$���N�&*#��!�N5=3X<A�,?<���Z[�\]̂_̀ ]_̂a�bcad�ef̂�gffc]hij�kgffc]�\h]a[��lmnch̀op�qrraôoì a�oid�sfi]at]�@��� ��!"�!���+�����&�($����## � �� ���-� �#��"#�%��%&�� ��#��� ��$ �"#� $������&��� $���"�<�@���)�$*��'��+$,��! !&--'��## � �$������$����$#��#,�-&�%��"�$*��' �"#� ��!"����#,� �#����(�$".��"#�"�����#��"��&*$"��$-���(!���## �� $�� �&- #�$�"-!���#������!*&�N*&��� ��!"�!�� � !"��& �%�&$�� $-# ��"$ ���� ��+�-- ��(&�� ��&(&��#�����#! � �&���(#&��#! � �#���&�!�&-� ��!"�!�� � !"��& ��#--#+����� ��"&/��+&-- �&����#".'�"��/$"� �0�<%<��G&"u&*&�&�343X6�)#,,�'�34Fv6�V&".�34Ev6�C-�".�� ��$��344v6���#+�&���Q���$� �344X6�����/� �89�:;<�5=3D?<�V&�%��"�$*��' ��%����&--'��&/$�%�&��#A��$�%��$&*�����%��&������&��5X<E�"*�� !"��& ���# ��#��"�!�"�� �� "�##- ��"#�/��� ��"#**��"$&-�(!$-�$�% �&����#! � �&���#,����! ���07&!��$���89�:;<�5==>6�C$%!���5?<���'� ��!"�!���! ���,#���## �$�%�('�����)�$*��'��+$,��$ �"#� $������&��� $���"�<���1!�$�%����� A�$�%�&���,&--�*$%�&�$#��A��$#����## �� $�� � ��-����&�'+�����,�#*�&�,�+�($�� �!A��#� �/��&-��!������#���/��� �/��&-���#! &���($�� <�1!�$�%����� !**���(����$�%�A��$#����## �� $�� ��&/��(����.�#+���#� ��-����!A��#��!����� �#,�($�� �$��-&�%���#+� �&���"$�$� �&��� #*��$*� �$��*#����!�&-�&��& <���B/$���"����&��&� ��!"�!���$ �! ���& ��� $���"��,#���## �$�%�$�"-!�� ��#��,&$��+�&������/��$�% ���($�� �%�&�!&--'�%&����$�%�$������*$�!�� �(�,#��� !� �����&��&� ��!"�!��6�& ������$*��#,�����'�&AA�#&"�� ������($�� �%&�����*#���&���*#���"#�� $/�-'�&��� �&���"$�"-$�%�����"�$*��'�#�� ��!"�!���+�$-��"&--$�%<�@�����&�� #*��A#$�������'�w!$".-'������<�@��'�"&������������"�$*��'�&-#���#��$��%�#!A �07&!��$���89�:;x�5==>?<��y_ì ]hfi��## �� $�� �A�#/$���)�$*��'��+$,� � ��-����&���A�#��"�$#��,�#*�A���&�#� �&���$%���&���#���&$�'��"#-��#��+$��'��&' ��& �+�--�& �&�/&�$��'�#,� #"$&-�(���,$� <�@�� ����-&�$/�-'�"#�,$���� A&"� �&- #�&--#+�����($�� ��#�%&����� $���('� $���&�����! �*&$��&$��(#�'���*A��&�!��<�1!�$�%������� �$�%� �& #���&��## �� $���*&'�(��#""!A$���('��#�N(����$�%�($�� �0#��,&$-���(������ ?��&���*&'�&- #�(��#""!A$���('�&��� �$�%�A&$�<�@����!*(���#,�($�� �&��$��$/$�!&-��## �� $�� �/&�$� ���A���$�%�#�������$*��#,�'�&���+$��� #*��($�� �*#/$�%��#�"#**!�&-��## �� $�� �&,������ �$�%�$ �"#*A-���<����$�$#�&--'�� #*���## �$�%� $�� �&���! ���A�$*&�$-'��!�$�%�����,&--�*$%�&�$#��A��$#���&��� #*��&���! ���A�$*&�$-'��!�$�%� A�$�%�*$%�&�$#�<��zo{oja�f̂�zac]̂_̀ ]hfi�fe�]ma�gachdaì a��1&*&%��#���� ��!"�$#��#,�&��� $���"��$ ���,$����& �&�'�&-���&�$#���#������#A#%�&A�'��%�#-#%'�� #$-�"#��$�$#� ��/�%��&�$#���"��*$"&-�"#*A# $�$#��#,�&$�M+&����� !�,&"��#��%�#!��+&�����'��#-#%'��*$"�#N"-$*&����#�� #!�����/$�#�*����+�$"���$�������*A#�&�$-'�#��A��*&����-'�$*A&$� �����,!�"�$#�0 ?�#,������� $���"��#,�#���#,�*#���$��$/$�!&- <��

17



��������	
��������
�������

���

�������������������� ���!��"#� ���#"������#""���������$�%& �'�(&���#��$"��%����� ��")�*�����$!�$!��������#"*�%������"+�����#""��������,�-!-'�#�.��#���"�������$���"#���#&��&#����������$!����#�+%"/��$ ����.�#��&#�0'��*��" �+��$!�����#""��������,�-!-�(��%�$�$!������$��#�"#�"+�������$���/��������%0'��*�(%"�1�$!���������"�����#""�������'��*��"��$!�"#�"���#/���� ���&#(�$!�����#""�������'��*� ���#"��$!�����#""�������'�"#��*��$��"���#���������������/"&% �$�!�����%���++��������+&$���"$�"+�������#&��&#��&�� �+"#�#""���$!-��234567�897�:43;<39=>�6?�@==<A89=>�B���$���C/�+���(�!�$��"��##�����$�B�$� ����������$ �"+��.#�%�"#��$���#%��D���,C�������EF�GH-�IJKL0��$ ���.���%%��"��&.��#""���������&$��%�����#� �.�#�&#��+"#��"&��("&$ ���!#���"$��$�%�����&���#M���#%��+�%%-�N������!#�����"&���+#"������#�(#�� �$!�!#"&$ ��(��/��$������$ �"+��&!&����$ ������$ �"+�C�.���(�#'� �.�$ �$!�"$�����%����& �'�/�����"���(�# ���$��"&��*/����#$�O$��#�"������$!�&$��%��� *%����O��"(�#�,P�&����#�EF�GH-�IJJQ0-���R$ �#�C�S�'�������#&��&#��&�� �+"#�#""���$!�����"$�� �#� ���#��� �$�����#"&!�"&���������#�(���&�������B���$���C/�+�����%�1�%���"�#��&#$����#�����#��"������������#&��&#�-�S""���+� �%������"$!�B���$���C/�+��������#"$!'���� ��"$��#��� �(������+���������#""����������#��&�� �+"#�����#�%��"$���&��������#��"#����$� ��� ���,P�&����#�EF�GH-�IJJQ0-�N���#""���������#����$�#��� �$������#"&!�"&���������#'�&$��%����#����� "�&��$�� ���� �$�������������.����������$"��&�� �����#""���$!���#&��&#��+"#���#����"$���&��������#�-�N����.�#�" �/��� ���#��$� �(��� �"$���� �$������������B���$���C/�+��/�%%�#�&�������#&��&#�����$��+��#����/"*���#��(��$���.�#�" ��$ ��"���������"#�����$�I����#��,TBBB�IJKU0-��(��$����&���(���"$+�#�� �&��$!������$ �# �.#"�"�"%�(��"$��"+�����B���$���C/�+��D"$��"#�$!�.#"!#�����$�B�$� ��"#�����V���"$�%�B���$���C/�+��S""���C&#����W#"�"�"%�,���.�)MM///-��$� �-��M�$M�$��#"$��$�*�%�����*���$!�M��#�����M(�# *�&#����M�"%&$���#�M$���"$�%*����$��*�/�+�*#""��*�&#���*.#"�"�"%-���%X�"�Y0'��$ ��"$��"#�$!��&�����1��.%������#"&!�"&������(#�� �$!�����"$��$ � &#�$!�������!#���"$�.�#�" -����
��Z�!&#��I-�������$���&�� �(��B���$���C/�+���+"#�$����$!��$�[&�(��������,.�"�")�B-�D�&#���0-���\775]5698̂�_9?64̀ 8]569�Z"#��"#���$+"#����"$�"$�����B���$���C/�+�'�!"��")����.�)MM�.�����*#�!���#�-��$� �-��M�$ �a*�$-���%XM�.�����MUYK*bYJ��Z"#��"#���$+"#����"$�"$�C�S�'�!"��")�

18



��������	
��������
�������

���

����������������� !���"� #�#��$�%�&'�����('�) *+),)*-./0-11231���4�#566�)$�$�7!���!5)�8'�����#!�����!��$5#&6�)�������95:��)6�)��5%�7�)�$���;��#!������4!�<�8&='!#�4� !���"��4��!$�)#��>��#�!��!5)���>��#�!��!5)�5%�4��!$�)#��%5������7�!6)�"�;�!%��?@ABCDEFB�GCHBIJKBL�!)�7�)�$���M& &���-N-O�������������#!��3�� !���"�#�)�$��#��!)$�P3�)���6'Q�$5#&6�)���RR0����STUTVTWXTY��75%%�"Z�2�2��[���1\OR��7�!6)�"�;�!%��6! ���!5)����]�6��!���̂���]! ��)��0�0_3_-Z�\R3\_���7̀ ;+ab7�-N1_��7̀ ;+ab7�������6�)���)$�����&�����5���5)�����7�!6)�"�;�!%��@ABCDEFB�GCHBIJKB�!)�7�)�$���7566!�����5)�����;���&��5%�+)$�) ���$�a!'$'!%��!)�7�)�$���̀�������P!!�c�RO�����?������������� !����'��3������ !���"� #�#��$�%�&'�����('�) *�),)*-./0-11231L���>�P���Z�4��a��?1\R\L��2�)$!) ��)$�)���!) ���&$!���5%�����7�!6)�"�;�!%�Z�1\..31\R_��̀�!5�[5&�)�'�5%�;#!�)#���R\�1\O3-1O���>�P���Z�4��a��1\\-��;5#!�'!�"�5%�7�!6)�"�;�!%���?@ABCDEFB�GCHBIJKBL�)���!) �!)���#5'5)"��d5����M6��!#�)�2!�$�2�)$����10��R13R.���efghijkl�mn�opppn�qkrkskth�uvfwhxhy�z�{|hxvf}�uvf����~!��5�"�;5#!��"��]#9!''3�&��)�3�)!:���!�"�8����Z�1R-�������+):!�5)6�)���)$�7'!6����7��) ��7�)�$���-N1\��7�!6)�"�;�!%��5##&�!�$����&#�&�����!6!) ��)�'"�!�Z��&�=�#��� !5)��7�)�$!�)�a!'$'!%��;��:!#�Z��&�=�#�4� !5)Z�7�)�$����+):!�5))�6�)�����7��) �6�)��#'!6��!�&��7�)�$���-N--��8�5 ��66��$������='!���6�)��$&�]���!)�����65)�&��?7����&�����'� !#�L��&�7�)�$���8�5�5�!�!5)�Z�;��!��$��8�5 ��66���$������='!���6�)��$��'���5!��&��'�������#����)����!'Z�+):!�5))�6�)�����7��) �6�)��#'!6��!�&��7�)�$�Z�̀�����Z�P!!�c�1�\�����+��<!)�Z�M��[��1\\-��M�'���5%�=���$!) �=!�$��5%�����]��!�!6��8�5:!)#����~�'!%�PZ�d5:��;#5�!���d5:��;#5�!��]&��&6���/!�#���Z�4��2�Z�1\�_��̂���=���$!) �=!5'5 "�5%�����7�!6)�"�;�!%�Z�@ABCDEFB�GCHBIJKB�?�!))��&�L��d����5�<�;�����]&��&6��)$�;#!�)#��;��:!#���2&''��!)�OR_��1.1���/'�#<�)���!)Z�[��1\\R��7�!6)�"�;�!%������̂���b5���=���$!) �=!�$���'��Z����-NN3-N1����;��[�#<�5)Z�7�M��̂�56��5)��)$�[�[��>!)�65��Z��$!�5�����)!:���!�"�5%�b5���8����Z�b5���#!�"Z�._.������9�&��!��Z�[�Z�]��>!5))�Z�7��]�&�!#�Z�[��85�:!)Z�]�>��7�$6�)Z��)$�>��2&�="��-NN0��;���&��5%�����7�!6)�"�;�!%��?@ABCDEFB�GCHBIJKBL�!)�7�)�$���̂�#�)!#�'�4��5���;��!���d5��.00Z�7�)�$!�)�a!'$'!%��;��:!#�Z�+):!�5)6�)��7�)�$�Z��&�=�#�7!�"��P!:�c�11\������95$%��"Z�a��+��1\_R��̂���2!�$��5%�7�)�$���4�:!��$�+$!�!5)��d��!5)�'�]&��&6�5%�d��&��'�;#!�)#��Z�̀�����Z��\���������#<Z�>��1\�R��M���:!���5%����� �)�����)$�)���!) ���=!���5%���!%����M&<�0O�13O-�����:�����Z�4��1\\R��>�%!)!�!5)��)$��!��5�"�����+�����)�̀'$3 �5����%5���������5���#��%5����$!�#5:��"��)$���#5:��"��+$!��$�="�]��"�2!�$�>�:!���b�'�)$�8����Z�a���!) �5)Z�O_O������

19



��������	
��������
�������

���

����������������� ��!"#��"$�%#&�'($)*��+**�(����*,��-$.*��/01/�230���'%4(��5�6���%7������8#��$%.����� ��!"#�9$�7.�4)�*"#�6#.*#�%�8�-#���*$���+:)4�7�;%$<#�.$*&�8�#..��+:)4�7���== �>>���'*##<#.��!�%%#��?���'"�%%4%�9��?#��%#&2��@##�����A��#*�B��C,D#A�����-<$%�E���$%F��������������%7��"��-#.�!���4--$%.��0=0=���"$�%#&�'($)*�GHIJKLMNJ�OKPJQRSJTU�<#�.$4%���=�V%�9$�7.�4)�*"#�64�-7�GB��W��844-#��X7$*4�T���4�%#--�E�D�4)�+�%$*"4-4A&��V*"������Y��;'B��"**>.1ZZ74$�4�AZ�=�0�[/ZD4(��"$.($�=���!,)*.��C�6���� \��9$�7.�4)��4<��'�4*$���!"$�7�X7$*$4%���$�D,.�8,D-���%7�*"#��4<��'�4*$���,.#,���]�-$)�:���'��3[ �>>���
20



March 20, 2024 

Hon. Paul Calandra  
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing  
Sent by email to: Paul.Calandra@pc.ola.org 

Re: Operational Budget Funding 

At its regular meeting of Council held on March 19, 2024, the Council of the Municipality 
of Powassan passed the following resolution: 

Resolution #: 2024-93 
Moved by: M. Wand  Seconded by: R. Hall 

That the council of the Municipality of Powassan supports the request of the Township of 
Amaranth calling upon the Province of Ontario to treat all municipalities fairly and provide 
equivalent representative operational budget funding amounts to all Ontario 
municipalities. 

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Allison Quinn 
Clerk 
Municipality of Powassan 

Cc: Premier of Ontario; AMO; Ontario Municipalities 

 250 Clark Street  clerk@powassan.net 
 P.O. Box 250  Tel: (705) 724-2813  
 Powassan, Ontario P0H 1Z0  Fax: (705) 724-5533 
 www.powassan.net 

21

http://www.powassan.net/


374028 6TH LINE      AMARANTH ON      L9W 0M6 

March 12, 2024 

Hon. Paul Calandra 
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 

Sent by email to: Paul.Calandra@pc.ola.org 

Re: Operational Budget Funding 

At its regular meeting of Council held on March 6, 2024, the Township of Amaranth 
Council passed the following resolution. 

Resolution #: 4 
Moved by: G Little 
Seconded by: A. Stirk 
Whereas all Ontario municipalities are prohibited from running budget deficits for 
operating purposes, and; 
Whereas all Ontario municipalities have similar pressures with respect to aging 
infrastructure and operating costs for policing, and; 
Whereas the City of Toronto has recently received Provincial funding to cover a 
$1.2 billion dollar operating shortfall and approximately $12 million in Federal and 
Provincial funding for their Police operating budget, and; 
Whereas the City of Toronto has the lowest tax rates in the Province, 
approximately 40% less than the average Dufferin rural municipal tax rate. 
Be it Resolved That the Township of Amaranth call on the Province of Ontario 
to treat all municipalities fairly and provide equivalent representative operational 
budget funding amounts to all Ontario municipalities. 
CARRIED  

Please do not hesitate to contact the office if you require any further information on this 
matter.  

Yours truly, 

Nicole Martin, Dipl. M.A. 
CAO/Clerk 
C: Premier of Ontario; AMO; Ontario Municipalities 

22



The Corporation of the Municipality of Wawa

Tuesday, March 19, 2024

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

RESOLUTION

Resolution # RC24069 Meeting Order: 12

Moved by:
Srd(

RESOLVED THAT d2ncN of the Municipality of Wawa es hereby support the
Resolution passed by the Township of Amaranth passed’ on February 23, 2024,
regarding pausing advancement on proposed highway 413 and redirect the appropriate
$8 billion cost for Highway 413 to support municipal infrastructure costs and housing
construction initiatives, a copy of which is attached hereto and;

FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT a copy
Premier Doug Ford, Minister of Infrastructure,
Municipalities of Ontario (AMO), and all municipalities

of this Resolution
Kinga Surma,

on Ontario.

be circulated to
Association of

OLUTION RESULT RECORDED VOTE
9 CARRIED MAYOR AND COUNCIL YES NO
fl DEFEATED Mitch Hatfield
L TABLED Cathy Cannon
L RECORDED VOTE (SEE RIGHT) Melanie Pilon

PECUNIARY INTEREST DECLARED Jim Hoffmann
LI WITHDRAWN Joseph Opnto

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the general nature thereof.

H Disclosed the pecuniary interest and general name thereof and abstained from the discussion, vote
and influence.

clerk:_________________________________________

MAYOR - MELANIE PILON CLERK - MAURY O’NEILL

This document is available in alternate formats.

23



The Corporation of the Municipality of Wawa

Tuesday, March 19, 2024

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

RESOLUTION

Resolution # RC24067 Meeting Order: 10

Mo br Seconded by:

4/7
RESOLVED THA3.-)Council of the Municipality of Wawa do hereby support the
Resolution passed by the Municipality of St- Charles passed on February 21, 2024,
regarding Guaranteed Livable Income attached hereto and;

FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT a copy of this Resolution be sent to Prime
Minister Justin Trudeau; Premier Doug Ford; Minister of Children, Community and
Social Service, Ryan Williams; the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO); our
local Member of Parliament, Carol Hughes, our local Member of Provincial Parliament,
Michael Mantha and all Ontario Municipalities.

7/z44ç/ c21&)6Y

ouflJflPffl
j CARRIED MAYOR AND COUNCIL YES NO
LI DEFEATED Mitch Hatfield
LI TABLED Cathy Cannon
El RECORDED VOTE (SEE RIGHT) Melanie Pilon
LI PECUNIARY INTEREST DECLARED Jim Hoffmann
LI WITHDRAWN Joseph Opato

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the general nature thereof.

LI Disclosed the pecuniary interest and general name thereof and abstained from the discussion, vote
and influence.

Clerk:_________________________________________

MAYOR - MELANIE PILON I CLERK - MAURIJ O’NEILL

This document is available in alternate formats. (

24



The Corporation of the Municipality of Wawa

Tuesday, March 19, 2024

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

RESOLUTION

FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT a copy of this Resolution
Premier Doug Ford, the Minister of Tourism, Culture and Sport,
Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMa), and all municipalities on

be circulated to
Neil Lumsden,

Ontario.

i9IIIflIION RESULT RECORDED VOTE
l1 CARRIED MAYOR AND COUNCIL YES NO
LI DEFEATED Mitch Hatfield
U TABLED Cathy Cannon
U RECORDED VOTE (SEE RIGHT) Melanie Pilon
fl PECUNIARY INTEREST DECLARED Jim Hoffniann
fl WITHDRAWN Joseph Opato

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the general nature thereof.

U Disclosed the pecuniary interest and general name thereof and abstained from the discussion, vote
and influence.

Clerk:_________________________________________

MAYOI4a.nwnqaIrn*t ‘—I 4AURY O’NEILL

L

RESOLVED THAT Council of the Municipalit7 of Wawa does hereby support the
Resolution passed by the Town of Lincoln passed on February 28, 2024, regarding
Urgent Need for Increased Funding to Libraries and Museums in Ontario, a copy of
which is attached hereto and;

This document is available in format1 /

25



CAUTION: This email originated outside of the Town of Newmarket. DO NOT click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and trusted content.

From: Rundle, Steffanie
To: Rundle, Steffanie
Cc: Ahmed, Jamal; Chinn, Andrew
Subject: Yonge Street Improvements, Davis Drive to Green Lane - Project Update
Date: March 21, 2024 3:30:40 PM
Attachments: Yonge Street Newsletter_Spring 2024.pdf

 

Project Update
Yonge Street from Davis Drive to Green Lane
Towns of Newmarket and East Gwillimbury

This email provides an update on the Yonge Street from Davis Drive to Green Lane
improvement project, in the Towns of Newmarket and East Gwillimbury.
 
The project is in the advance construction phase to prepare for road widening in 2025.
 
Completed work

Built noise barriers and retaining walls
Installed new hydro poles on caissons (footings) and utilities
Installed traffic signals at Canadian Tire and Yonge-Kingston Centre entrance

 
In-progress and planned

Install new hydro lines and utilities, including poles and caissons
Build noise barriers between London Road and Bristol Road
Move entrance traffic signals at Upper Canada Mall and NewRoads GM dealership

 
Impacts to travellers

In spring 2024, travellers can expect short duration lane and road closures to install
hydro poles
Throughout the year, construction will continue mainly on the boulevards and
shoulders; lane closures may be required to safely complete construction

 
As with all road construction projects, work may be rescheduled due to weather. York
Region will provide advance notice whenever possible. 
 
For more information and project updates, visit www.york.ca/YongeStreet
 
If you have questions about this project, please contact:

Jamal Ahmed, Project Manager, at 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75955 or
jamal.ahmed@york.ca  
Andrew Chinn, Construction Administrator, at 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75962 or
andrew.chin@york.ca  

 
For general inquiries, please contact Transportation Operations at 1-877-464-9675 ext.

26

mailto:Steffanie.Rundle@york.ca
mailto:Steffanie.Rundle@york.ca
mailto:Jamal.Ahmed@york.ca
mailto:Andrew.Chinn@york.ca
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/VjFCCZYMARH6nQcjKY0K?domain=york.ca
mailto:jamal.ahmed@york.ca
mailto:andrew.chin@york.ca



Spring 2024


Yonge Street Improvements
Davis Drive to Green Lane
Towns of Newmarket and East Gwillimbury


York Region is transforming Yonge Street from Davis Drive to Green Lane in the Town of Newmarket and 
Town of East Gwillimbury to accommodate growth and provide more travel options.


In addition to widening and improving the road, we are upgrading large underground utility networks. Road reconstruction is an 
opportunity to replace older infrastructure, providing better service for our towns and preparing them for the future. In partnership 
with Newmarket-Tay Power, we are currently working on electrical improvements, including installing new hydro poles and wires.


Project update
The project is in the advance construction phase to prepare for 
road widening in 2025.


Completed work


• Built noise barriers and retaining walls 


• Installed new hydro poles on caissons (footings) and utilities 


• Installed tra�  c signals at Canadian Tire and
Yonge-Kingston Centre entrance 


In-progress and planned


• Install new hydro lines and utilities, including poles and caissons 


• Build noise barriers between London Road and Bristol Road


• Move entrance tra�  c signals at Upper Canada Mall and 
NewRoads GM dealership entrance


Impacts to travellers and residents 
Spring 2024 – Short duration road and lane closures to install 
hydro poles


• Sections of Yonge Street will be temporarily closed to 
traffic for periods of 15 minutes or less when hydro poles 
are installed; closures are necessary due to hydro poles’ 
size, height and weight and to safely accommodate work 
and travellers


• Travellers will experience reduced lanes when equipment is 
positioned to place poles


• Police will be on site to help direct tra�  c


Throughout 2024, construction will continue mainly on
Yonge Street boulevards and shoulders. Lane closures may 
be required to safely complete construction. Sidewalks and 
pedestrian pathways will be open on one side of the road with 
signs providing direction. Business entrances will always be open. 


We understand construction causes inconvenience and 
thank you for your patience. Travellers are encouraged to use 
navigation tools to plan ahead.


Relocating a watermain on Yonge Street near 
Bristol Road, November 2023.


As population grows, the need for roads and other 
services, also rises. York Region is anticipated to 


grow to more than 2 million people by 2051. 
Example of a road closure for hydro pole installation. 
Poles range in height from 75 to 110 feet.


Turn over →







YORK REGION TRANSPORTATION, PUBLIC WORKS
Phone: 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75000
TTY: 1-866-512-6228
Email: transportation@york.ca
After hours emergency: 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75200


• Visit york.ca/YongeStreet for information about road construction projects in your community


• Follow @YorkRegionGovt on Facebook and X 


• Send inquiries to transportation@york.ca quoting 
“Yonge Street Improvements” 


 Accessible formats of this newsletter and communication  
 supports are available upon request.


Project benefi ts 
• More lanes – a wider road, increased from four to six 


through lanes 


• Active transportation – new, wider sidewalks and bicycle 
lanes in the boulevards 


• Enhanced connectivity and safety – upgraded tra�  c 
signals and streetlights 


• Streetscaping – plantings within the boulevards and 
medians 


• Road rehabilitation – new asphalt pavement for a 
comfortable drive and reliable roadway


• Underground infrastructure – new utilities, storm 
sewers, culverts and watermains 


Andrew Chinn is a Construction Administrator with York Region Public Works, 
overseeing and administering road construction projects. Andrew works 
closely with contractors from start to completion. A large part of Andrew’s 
day is attending active construction areas where safety is top priority.


Safety reminder
For everyone’s safety, the speed limit is reduced to 50km/h through the work 
zone. Please slow down and give workers plenty of space.


20,000 POUNDS PER POLE


1,700+ KILOMETRES 
TRAVELLED FROM 
ALABAMA, USA AND 
BURLINGTON, ON


4.5-METRE DEEP 
FOOTINGS FOR 


STABLE 
FOUNDATION


68 HYDRO POLES TO BE INSTALLED


75 TO 110 FEET
(30 METRES) TALL


WIDE


2.5
FE


ET OR .75 METRES


Stay informed


Open your phone’s camera and 
point it at the code to learn more 
about the Yonge Street project.


Installing a 4.5-metre deep caisson (hydro pole 
foundation) on Yonge Street, October 2023.


Hydro Pole Facts







75000 or via email at transportation@york.ca
 
For after-hours emergencies, please contact York Region’s Roads and Traffic Operations
Centre at 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75200.
 
Please communicate this information with your colleagues as appropriate.
 
Sincerely,
 
Our working hours may be different. Please don’t feel obliged to respond outside of your scheduled working hours.
Let’s work together to help foster healthy work-life boundaries.
 
Steffanie Rundle (she/her) | Communications and Engagement Associate
Sustainability, Communications and Innovation, Public Works 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
The Regional Municipality of York | 17250 Yonge Street | Newmarket, ON L3Y 6Z1 
C:905-716-7550 | Steffanie.Rundle@york.ca | york.ca |Chat with me on Teams
 
Our Mission: Working together to serve our thriving communities – today and tomorrow
 

27

mailto:transportation@york.ca
mailto:Steffanie.Rundle@york.ca
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/Zq1dC1WZ0Du4wqTpKtmb?domain=york.ca/
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/IYihC2xZyEUYo8c2nS94?domain=teams.microsoft.com


Spring 2024

Yonge Street Improvements
Davis Drive to Green Lane
Towns of Newmarket and East Gwillimbury

York Region is transforming Yonge Street from Davis Drive to Green Lane in the Town of Newmarket and 
Town of East Gwillimbury to accommodate growth and provide more travel options.

In addition to widening and improving the road, we are upgrading large underground utility networks. Road reconstruction is an 
opportunity to replace older infrastructure, providing better service for our towns and preparing them for the future. In partnership 
with Newmarket-Tay Power, we are currently working on electrical improvements, including installing new hydro poles and wires.

Project update
The project is in the advance construction phase to prepare for 
road widening in 2025.

Completed work

• Built noise barriers and retaining walls 

• Installed new hydro poles on caissons (footings) and utilities 

• Installed tra�  c signals at Canadian Tire and
Yonge-Kingston Centre entrance 

In-progress and planned

• Install new hydro lines and utilities, including poles and caissons 

• Build noise barriers between London Road and Bristol Road

• Move entrance tra�  c signals at Upper Canada Mall and 
NewRoads GM dealership entrance

Impacts to travellers and residents 
Spring 2024 – Short duration road and lane closures to install 
hydro poles

• Sections of Yonge Street will be temporarily closed to 
traffic for periods of 15 minutes or less when hydro poles 
are installed; closures are necessary due to hydro poles’ 
size, height and weight and to safely accommodate work 
and travellers

• Travellers will experience reduced lanes when equipment is 
positioned to place poles

• Police will be on site to help direct tra�  c

Throughout 2024, construction will continue mainly on
Yonge Street boulevards and shoulders. Lane closures may 
be required to safely complete construction. Sidewalks and 
pedestrian pathways will be open on one side of the road with 
signs providing direction. Business entrances will always be open. 

We understand construction causes inconvenience and 
thank you for your patience. Travellers are encouraged to use 
navigation tools to plan ahead.

Relocating a watermain on Yonge Street near 
Bristol Road, November 2023.

As population grows, the need for roads and other 
services, also rises. York Region is anticipated to 

grow to more than 2 million people by 2051. 
Example of a road closure for hydro pole installation. 
Poles range in height from 75 to 110 feet.

Turn over →

28



YORK REGION TRANSPORTATION, PUBLIC WORKS
Phone: 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75000
TTY: 1-866-512-6228
Email: transportation@york.ca
After hours emergency: 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75200

• Visit york.ca/YongeStreet for information about road construction projects in your community

• Follow @YorkRegionGovt on Facebook and X 

• Send inquiries to transportation@york.ca quoting 
“Yonge Street Improvements” 

 Accessible formats of this newsletter and communication  
 supports are available upon request.

Project benefi ts 
• More lanes – a wider road, increased from four to six 

through lanes 

• Active transportation – new, wider sidewalks and bicycle 
lanes in the boulevards 

• Enhanced connectivity and safety – upgraded tra�  c 
signals and streetlights 

• Streetscaping – plantings within the boulevards and 
medians 

• Road rehabilitation – new asphalt pavement for a 
comfortable drive and reliable roadway

• Underground infrastructure – new utilities, storm 
sewers, culverts and watermains 

Andrew Chinn is a Construction Administrator with York Region Public Works, 
overseeing and administering road construction projects. Andrew works 
closely with contractors from start to completion. A large part of Andrew’s 
day is attending active construction areas where safety is top priority.

Safety reminder
For everyone’s safety, the speed limit is reduced to 50km/h through the work 
zone. Please slow down and give workers plenty of space.

20,000 POUNDS PER POLE

1,700+ KILOMETRES 
TRAVELLED FROM 
ALABAMA, USA AND 
BURLINGTON, ON

4.5-METRE DEEP 
FOOTINGS FOR 

STABLE 
FOUNDATION

68 HYDRO POLES TO BE INSTALLED

75 TO 110 FEET
(30 METRES) TALL

WIDE

2.5
FE

ET OR .75 METRES

Stay informed

Open your phone’s camera and 
point it at the code to learn more 
about the Yonge Street project.

Installing a 4.5-metre deep caisson (hydro pole 
foundation) on Yonge Street, October 2023.

Hydro Pole Facts

29



CAUTION: This email originated outside of the Town of Newmarket. DO NOT click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and trusted content.

From: Rundle, Steffanie
To: clerks@eastgwillimbury.ca; Clerks
Subject: Yonge Street Project Update and Spring Newsletter: Towns of Newmarket and East Gwillimbury
Date: March 21, 2024 3:15:25 PM
Attachments: Yonge Street Newsletter_Spring 2024.pdf

 

Good afternoon: 
 
Attached is a copy of the spring newsletter for the Yonge Street from Davis Drive to
Green Lane improvement project, in the Towns of Newmarket and East Gwillimbury.
This newsletter is provided to you in advance of notification to the public.  
 
The purpose of the newsletter is to provide local area residents, stakeholders and business
owners with a project update. The newsletter highlights completed work and work in-
progress and planned. The project is in the advance construction phase to prepare for road
widening in 2025.
 
Completed work

Built noise barriers and retaining walls
Installed new hydro poles on caissons (footings) and utilities
Installed traffic signals at Canadian Tire and Yonge-Kingston Centre entrance

 
In-progress and planned

Install new hydro lines and utilities, including poles and caissons
Build noise barriers between London Road and Bristol Road
Move entrance traffic signals at Upper Canada Mall and NewRoads GM dealership
entrance

 
In spring 2024, travellers can expect short duration lane and road closures to install hydro
poles. Throughout the year, construction will continue mainly on the boulevards and
shoulders. Lane closures may be required to safely complete construction.
 
As with all road construction projects, work may be rescheduled due to weather. York
Region will provide advance notice whenever possible. 
 
Information will be posted on york.ca, promoted on social media and mailed via Canada
Post to local homes and businesses.
 
It may be appropriate for your office to forward this notice to elected officials and staff as
required.
 
If you have any questions about this project, please contact: 

Salim Alibhai, Director of Capital Planning and Delivery, at 1-877-464-9675 ext.
75229 or salim.alibhai@york.ca 
Jamal Ahmed, Project Manager, at 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75955 or
jamal.ahmed@york.ca  

30

mailto:Steffanie.Rundle@york.ca
mailto:clerks@eastgwillimbury.ca
mailto:clerks@newmarket.ca
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/oBMSCnxy2PUEnrI9GCm9?domain=york.ca
mailto:salim.alibhai@york.ca
mailto:jamal.ahmed@york.ca



Spring 2024


Yonge Street Improvements
Davis Drive to Green Lane
Towns of Newmarket and East Gwillimbury


York Region is transforming Yonge Street from Davis Drive to Green Lane in the Town of Newmarket and 
Town of East Gwillimbury to accommodate growth and provide more travel options.


In addition to widening and improving the road, we are upgrading large underground utility networks. Road reconstruction is an 
opportunity to replace older infrastructure, providing better service for our towns and preparing them for the future. In partnership 
with Newmarket-Tay Power, we are currently working on electrical improvements, including installing new hydro poles and wires.


Project update
The project is in the advance construction phase to prepare for 
road widening in 2025.


Completed work


• Built noise barriers and retaining walls 


• Installed new hydro poles on caissons (footings) and utilities 


• Installed tra�  c signals at Canadian Tire and
Yonge-Kingston Centre entrance 


In-progress and planned


• Install new hydro lines and utilities, including poles and caissons 


• Build noise barriers between London Road and Bristol Road


• Move entrance tra�  c signals at Upper Canada Mall and 
NewRoads GM dealership entrance


Impacts to travellers and residents 
Spring 2024 – Short duration road and lane closures to install 
hydro poles


• Sections of Yonge Street will be temporarily closed to 
traffic for periods of 15 minutes or less when hydro poles 
are installed; closures are necessary due to hydro poles’ 
size, height and weight and to safely accommodate work 
and travellers


• Travellers will experience reduced lanes when equipment is 
positioned to place poles


• Police will be on site to help direct tra�  c


Throughout 2024, construction will continue mainly on
Yonge Street boulevards and shoulders. Lane closures may 
be required to safely complete construction. Sidewalks and 
pedestrian pathways will be open on one side of the road with 
signs providing direction. Business entrances will always be open. 


We understand construction causes inconvenience and 
thank you for your patience. Travellers are encouraged to use 
navigation tools to plan ahead.


Relocating a watermain on Yonge Street near 
Bristol Road, November 2023.


As population grows, the need for roads and other 
services, also rises. York Region is anticipated to 


grow to more than 2 million people by 2051. 
Example of a road closure for hydro pole installation. 
Poles range in height from 75 to 110 feet.


Turn over →







YORK REGION TRANSPORTATION, PUBLIC WORKS
Phone: 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75000
TTY: 1-866-512-6228
Email: transportation@york.ca
After hours emergency: 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75200


• Visit york.ca/YongeStreet for information about road construction projects in your community


• Follow @YorkRegionGovt on Facebook and X 


• Send inquiries to transportation@york.ca quoting 
“Yonge Street Improvements” 


 Accessible formats of this newsletter and communication  
 supports are available upon request.


Project benefi ts 
• More lanes – a wider road, increased from four to six 


through lanes 


• Active transportation – new, wider sidewalks and bicycle 
lanes in the boulevards 


• Enhanced connectivity and safety – upgraded tra�  c 
signals and streetlights 


• Streetscaping – plantings within the boulevards and 
medians 


• Road rehabilitation – new asphalt pavement for a 
comfortable drive and reliable roadway


• Underground infrastructure – new utilities, storm 
sewers, culverts and watermains 


Andrew Chinn is a Construction Administrator with York Region Public Works, 
overseeing and administering road construction projects. Andrew works 
closely with contractors from start to completion. A large part of Andrew’s 
day is attending active construction areas where safety is top priority.


Safety reminder
For everyone’s safety, the speed limit is reduced to 50km/h through the work 
zone. Please slow down and give workers plenty of space.


20,000 POUNDS PER POLE


1,700+ KILOMETRES 
TRAVELLED FROM 
ALABAMA, USA AND 
BURLINGTON, ON


4.5-METRE DEEP 
FOOTINGS FOR 


STABLE 
FOUNDATION


68 HYDRO POLES TO BE INSTALLED


75 TO 110 FEET
(30 METRES) TALL


WIDE


2.5
FE


ET OR .75 METRES


Stay informed


Open your phone’s camera and 
point it at the code to learn more 
about the Yonge Street project.


Installing a 4.5-metre deep caisson (hydro pole 
foundation) on Yonge Street, October 2023.


Hydro Pole Facts







 
For general inquiries, please contact Public Works at 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75000 or via
email at transportation@york.ca   
 
Sincerely, 
 
Our working hours may be different. Please don’t feel obliged to respond outside of your scheduled working hours.
Let’s work together to help foster healthy work-life boundaries.
 
Steffanie Rundle (she/her) | Communications and Engagement Associate
Sustainability, Communications and Innovation, Public Works 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
The Regional Municipality of York | 17250 Yonge Street | Newmarket, ON L3Y 6Z1 
C:905-716-7550 | Steffanie.Rundle@york.ca | york.ca |Chat with me on Teams
 
Our Mission: Working together to serve our thriving communities – today and tomorrow
 
 
 

31

mailto:transportation@york.ca
mailto:Steffanie.Rundle@york.ca
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/VBbLCoVz3PCnk6Tzm6a9?domain=york.ca/
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/-j_CCp8A4PS25pCYqcMD?domain=teams.microsoft.com


Spring 2024

Yonge Street Improvements
Davis Drive to Green Lane
Towns of Newmarket and East Gwillimbury

York Region is transforming Yonge Street from Davis Drive to Green Lane in the Town of Newmarket and 
Town of East Gwillimbury to accommodate growth and provide more travel options.

In addition to widening and improving the road, we are upgrading large underground utility networks. Road reconstruction is an 
opportunity to replace older infrastructure, providing better service for our towns and preparing them for the future. In partnership 
with Newmarket-Tay Power, we are currently working on electrical improvements, including installing new hydro poles and wires.

Project update
The project is in the advance construction phase to prepare for 
road widening in 2025.

Completed work

• Built noise barriers and retaining walls 

• Installed new hydro poles on caissons (footings) and utilities 

• Installed tra�  c signals at Canadian Tire and
Yonge-Kingston Centre entrance 

In-progress and planned

• Install new hydro lines and utilities, including poles and caissons 

• Build noise barriers between London Road and Bristol Road

• Move entrance tra�  c signals at Upper Canada Mall and 
NewRoads GM dealership entrance

Impacts to travellers and residents 
Spring 2024 – Short duration road and lane closures to install 
hydro poles

• Sections of Yonge Street will be temporarily closed to 
traffic for periods of 15 minutes or less when hydro poles 
are installed; closures are necessary due to hydro poles’ 
size, height and weight and to safely accommodate work 
and travellers

• Travellers will experience reduced lanes when equipment is 
positioned to place poles

• Police will be on site to help direct tra�  c

Throughout 2024, construction will continue mainly on
Yonge Street boulevards and shoulders. Lane closures may 
be required to safely complete construction. Sidewalks and 
pedestrian pathways will be open on one side of the road with 
signs providing direction. Business entrances will always be open. 

We understand construction causes inconvenience and 
thank you for your patience. Travellers are encouraged to use 
navigation tools to plan ahead.

Relocating a watermain on Yonge Street near 
Bristol Road, November 2023.

As population grows, the need for roads and other 
services, also rises. York Region is anticipated to 

grow to more than 2 million people by 2051. 
Example of a road closure for hydro pole installation. 
Poles range in height from 75 to 110 feet.

Turn over →

32



YORK REGION TRANSPORTATION, PUBLIC WORKS
Phone: 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75000
TTY: 1-866-512-6228
Email: transportation@york.ca
After hours emergency: 1-877-464-9675 ext. 75200

• Visit york.ca/YongeStreet for information about road construction projects in your community

• Follow @YorkRegionGovt on Facebook and X 

• Send inquiries to transportation@york.ca quoting 
“Yonge Street Improvements” 

 Accessible formats of this newsletter and communication  
 supports are available upon request.

Project benefi ts 
• More lanes – a wider road, increased from four to six 

through lanes 

• Active transportation – new, wider sidewalks and bicycle 
lanes in the boulevards 

• Enhanced connectivity and safety – upgraded tra�  c 
signals and streetlights 

• Streetscaping – plantings within the boulevards and 
medians 

• Road rehabilitation – new asphalt pavement for a 
comfortable drive and reliable roadway

• Underground infrastructure – new utilities, storm 
sewers, culverts and watermains 

Andrew Chinn is a Construction Administrator with York Region Public Works, 
overseeing and administering road construction projects. Andrew works 
closely with contractors from start to completion. A large part of Andrew’s 
day is attending active construction areas where safety is top priority.

Safety reminder
For everyone’s safety, the speed limit is reduced to 50km/h through the work 
zone. Please slow down and give workers plenty of space.

20,000 POUNDS PER POLE

1,700+ KILOMETRES 
TRAVELLED FROM 
ALABAMA, USA AND 
BURLINGTON, ON

4.5-METRE DEEP 
FOOTINGS FOR 

STABLE 
FOUNDATION

68 HYDRO POLES TO BE INSTALLED

75 TO 110 FEET
(30 METRES) TALL

WIDE

2.5
FE

ET OR .75 METRES

Stay informed

Open your phone’s camera and 
point it at the code to learn more 
about the Yonge Street project.

Installing a 4.5-metre deep caisson (hydro pole 
foundation) on Yonge Street, October 2023.

Hydro Pole Facts

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 
 
From: Clerk <clerk@mcmurrichmonteith.com>  
Sent: Friday, March 22, 2024 3:34 PM 
To:  
Subject: RE: MSC Res. 2024-043 - Potential Municipal Equipment Operator Course 
 
Good afternoon, 
 
Please see the resolution below that was passed by the Council of the Township of McMurrich/Monteith 
at their Regular meeting held March 5, 2024 supporting the Municipality of St. Charles calling on the 
Provincial Government to fully fund the Municipal Equipment Operator Course in 2024 through the Skills 
Development Fund. 
 
Resolution 2024-89 
Moved by:  Dan O’Halloran 
Seconded by:  Terry Currie 
Be It Resolved that council supports Resolution 2024-043 from Municipality of St. Charles calling on the 
Province of Ontario’s Ministry of Labour, Training, Immigration and Skilled Trades to fully fund the 
Municipal Equipment Operator Course in 2024 through the Skills Development Fund.  Carried 
 
 

Best regards, 
Cheryl Marshall,  

Clerk/Treasurer 
Township of McMurrich/Monteith 
P.O. Box 70, 31 William Street 
Sprucedale, Ontario  P0A 1Y0 
Phone: 705-685-7901 Fax: 705-685-7393 
www.mcmurrichmonteith.com 
 
 
 
This communication is intended for the sole use of the person(s) to whom it is addressed and may 
contain information that is privileged, confidential or subject to copyright.  Any unauthorized use, 
disclosure or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.  If you have received this 
communication in error, please contact the sender immediately.  Any communication received in error 
should be deleted and all copies destroyed. 
 
From: Tammy Godden <clerk@stcharlesontario.ca>  
Sent: February 29, 2024 2:08 PM 
 
Subject: Re: MSC Res. 2024-043 - Potential Municipal Equipment Operator Course 
 

Good Afternoon: 
 

44

https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/TGk4CJyp4RFD76cGz8lZ?domain=mcmurrichmonteith.com/
mailto:clerk@stcharlesontario.ca


At its Regular Meeting of Council held February 21, 2024, the Corporation of the 
Municipality of St.-Charles passed the following Resolution 2024-043. 
 
 

Tammy J. Godden (she/her) 
Clerk, Municipality of St.-Charles 

2 King Street East 

P.O. Box 70 

St.-Charles, ON, P0M 2W0 

Clerk@stcharlesontario.ca 

Tel: 705-867-2032 Ext. 207 
Toll Free: 1-877-867-2032 
Fax: 705-867-5789 

 

www.stcharlesontario.ca 
 
Warning: This e-mail may be privileged and/or confidential, and the sender does not waive any related rights and obligations. Any distribution, use or 
copying of this e-mail or the information it contains by other than an intended recipient is unauthorized. Should you receive this e-mail in error, please 
advise me (by return e-mail or otherwise) immediately, and delete this e-mail. 
 
Avis : Ce courriel est confidentiel et protégé. L'expéditeur ne renonce pas aux droits et obligations qui s'y rapportent. Toute diffusion, utilisation ou 
copie de ce message ou des renseignements qu'il contient par une personne autre que le (les) destinataire(s) désigné(s) est interdite. Si vous recevez 
ce courrier électronique par erreur, veuillez m'en aviser immédiatement et supprimez ce courriel. 

  

 

45

mailto:Clerk@stcharlesontario.ca
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/07yDCL7rjRTZJGtmSywL?domain=stcharlesontario.ca/


TOWNSHIP OF 

Adelaide 
Metcalfe 

March 22nd
, 2024 

The Honourable Lisa Thompson 
Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs 
11th Floor 
77 Grenville St. 
Toronto, ON M5S 1 B3 

RE: Township of Adelaide Metcalfe - Request to Increase Tile Drain Loan Limit 

Dear Minister Thompson, 

On March 18, 2024, the Township of Adelaide Metcalfe Council approved the following 
resolution: 

WHEREAS farm drainage is of paramount importance in Ontario due to its significant impact 
on agricultural productivity and sustainability. Effective drainage systems help mitigate 
waterlogging, control soil moisture levels, and enhance soil structure, thereby optimizing 
growing conditions for crops; 

WHEREAS improved drainage also facilitates timely field operations, reduces erosion, and 
minimizes nutrient runoff, contributing to environmental conservation efforts; 

WHEREAS Ontario's diverse agricultural landscape, where weather variability is common, 
well-maintained drainage systems play a crucial role in ensuring stable yields, economic 
viability, and long-term resilience for farmers across the Province; 

WHEREAS the Tile Loan Drainage Act, R.S.O 1990, c. T.B allows for the borrowing of money 
for the purpose of constructing drainage works; 

WHEREAS the maximum annual limit for these loans, unchanged since 2004, is currently set 
at $50,000. 

WHEREAS costs for Tile Drainage has increased markedly since 2004; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Township of Adelaide Metcalfe requests that the 
Province through the Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) consider 
increasing the maximum annual Tile Loan limit to a minimum of $100,000. 

AND THAT this resolution be circulated the Honourable Lisa Thompson - Ministry of 
Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA), the Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
(AMO), the Rural Ontario Municipal Association (ROMA), and all Ontario municipalities. 

2340 Egremont Drive, R.R. #5, Strathroy, Ontario, N7G 3H6 

Phone (519)247-3687 Toll Free 1-866-525-8878 Fax (519)247-3411 E-Mail info@adelaidemetcalfe.on.ca 

46



47



TOWNSHIP OF EDWARDSBURGH CARDINAL 
March 25, 2024 

WHEREAS the Edwardsburgh Cardinal Fire Department is comprised of a Fire Chief, 
Deputy Chief and has two fire stations, which are both staffed with three Captains and a 
complement of volunteer firefighters; and 

WHEREAS the Edwardsburgh Cardinal Fire Department volunteer firefighters typically 
do not reach the 200-hour threshold within a calendar year to quality for an increase to 
the tax credit from $3,000 to $10,000; and 

WHEREAS the Government of Canada should support all volunteer firefighters whether 
or not they accumulate 200-hours of volunteer services within a calendar year; and 

WHEREAS the Edwardsburgh Cardinal Fire Department and Township of 
Edwardsburgh Cardinal believe that all volunteer firefighters that have actively 
contributed to their communities through firefighting and search and rescue services 
should be recognized and included within the Bill C-310 to increase the amount of the 
tax credits permitted ; and 

WHEREAS volunteer firefighters and search and rescue services that have 
accumulated between O to 199 hours of volunteer services should be considered with 
Bill C-310 for an increase to the amount of tax credit from $1 ,000 to $3 ,000. 

NOW BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Municipal Council of the Township of Edwardsburgh 
Cardinal call upon the Government of Canada to support Bill C-310 and enact 
amendments to subsection 118.06(2) and 118.07(2) of the Income Tax Act in order to 
increase the amount of the tax credits for volunteer firefighting and search and rescue 
volunteer services from $1 ,000 to $3,000 for any member that has completed between 
0 to 199 hours of volunteer services in a calendar year. 

□ Carried 

RECORDED VOTE REQUESTED BY: 

NAME YEA NAY 

Councillor J. Martelle 

Councillor W. Smail 

Councillor C. Ward 

Deputy Mayor S. Dillabough 

Mayor T. Deschamps 

TOTAL 

i ) I. 
48



TOWNSHIP OF EDWARDSBURGH CARDINAL 
March 25, 2024 

Moved 

AND FURTHER THAT the Municipal Council of the Township of Edwardsburgh 
Cardinal supports Bonfield Township Resolution No. 15 calling upon the Government of 
Canada to support Bill C-310 and enact amendments to subsection 118.06(2) and 
118.07(2) of the Income Tax Act in order to increase the amount of the tax credits for 
volunteer firefighting and search and rescue volunteer services from $3,000 to $10,000. 

□ Carried □ Defeated □ Unanimous 

Mayor: ----------
I RECORDED VOTE REQUESTED BY: 

NAME YEA NAY 

Councillor J. Martelle 

Councillor W. Smail 

Councillor C. Ward 

Deputy Mayor S. Dillabough 

Mayor T. Deschamps 

TOTAL 

I 

49



Town of Whitby 
575 Rossland Road East,  
Whitby, ON L1N 2M8 
905.430.4300 
whitby.ca 
  

 
 

March 25, 2024 

Via Email: 
 
Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
premier@ontario.ca  
  
Re: Correspondence 2024-87 from A. Adams, Regional Clerk, Regional Municipality of 
Peel, dated February 2, 2024, re Supreme Court of Appeal in Sudbury v. Ontario 
(Ministry of Labour) 
 
Please be advised that at its meeting held on March 18, 2024, the Council of the Town 
of Whitby adopted the following as Resolution # 51-24: 
 

Whereas in 2015 the City of Greater Sudbury (“Sudbury”) entered into a contract 
with a contractor to complete a project in its downtown core; and,  
 
Whereas the contract provided that the contractor would be the constructor for 
the project as that term is defined in the Occupational Health and Safety Act (the 
“Act”); and,  
 
Whereas an employee of the constructor operating a grader on the project struck 
and killed a pedestrian; and, 
 
Whereas Sudbury was charged with offences under the Act as the constructor 
and the employer; and, 
 
Whereas after being acquitted at trial and on appeal, the Ontario Court of Appeal, 
in a decision issued on April 23, 2021, found Sudbury to be liable for 
contraventions of the Construction Regulations as an employer as it employed 
quality control inspectors to monitor the quality of work on the project from time-
to-time; and, 
 
Whereas the Supreme Court of Canada, in a decision issued on November 10, 
2023, was evenly divided 4-4 on the issue resulting in the dismissal of Sudbury’s 
appeal; and,  
 
Whereas the consequence of this decision is that municipalities in Ontario, as 
well as all other owners of property in the province, who wish to undertake 

50

mailto:premier@ontario.ca


 

Page 2 of 3 
 

construction, are subject to being charged and convicted as an employer for 
offences in relation to project sites for which they have no control and have, in 
accordance with the Act, contracted with an entity to assume oversight and 
authority over the work on such site as the constructor; and, 
 
Whereas the potential of an owner being charged as an employer as that term is 
defined in the Act in circumstances where it has engaged a constructor 
disregards and renders meaningless the owner-constructor provisions contained 
in the Act and presents an unacceptable level of increased risk and confusion for 
owners and contractors throughout the province; and, 
 
Whereas the Town of Whitby believes that the safety of workers is paramount 
however the safety of workers on construction projects in Ontario is not 
increased by placing liability on parties that do not have control of and are not 
responsible for the conduct of the work on such sites.  
 
Now therefore be it resolved: 
 

1. That Correspondence 2024-87 from A. Adams, Regional Clerk, Regional 
Municipality of Peel, dated February 2, 2024 re Supreme Court of Appeal 
in Sudbury v. Ontario (Ministry of Labour) be endorsed by Council; and, 
 

2. That the Council of The Town of Whitby requests that the province amend 
the Occupational Health and Safety Act to clarify the definition of 
“employer” to exclude owners that have contracted with a constructor for a 
project; and, 
 

3. That this resolution be provided to the Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of 
Ontario, the Honourable David Piccini, Minister of Labour, Immigration, 
Training and Skills Development, the Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister 
of Municipal Affairs and Housing, the Association of Municipalities of 
Ontario, the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities, Mayors and 
Regional Chairs of Ontario, the Council of Ontario Construction 
Associations, the Ontario Chamber of Commerce and all Greater Toronto 
Area municipalities. 

 
Should you require further information, please do not hesitate to contact the Office of 
the Town Clerk at 905-430-4315. 
 

 
 
 
Kevin Narraway 
Sr. Manager of Legislative Services/Deputy Clerk 
 
 

51



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Copy: C. Harris, Director, Legislative Services/Town Clerk 
F. Wong, Commissioner, Financial Services/Treasurer 
F. Santaguida, Commissioner, Legal and Enforcement Services/Town Solicitor 

 
Honourable David Piccini, Minister of Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills 
Development  
Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing  
Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities 
Mayors and Regional Chairs of Ontario 
Council of Ontario Construction Associations  
Ontario Chamber of Commerce 
All Greater Toronto Area municipalities 

52



Town of Whitby 
575 Rossland Road East,  
Whitby, ON L1N 2M8 
905.430.4300 
whitby.ca 
  

 
 

March 25, 2024 

Via Email: 
 
Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
premier@ontario.ca 
 
Re: Memorandum from H. Ellis, Council and Committee Coordinator, dated February 

2, 2024 re: Whitby Sustainability Advisory Committee Request that Council 
Support the Ontario Energy Board’s Decision to end the Gas Pipeline Subsidy 

 
Please be advised that at its meeting held on March 18, 2024, the Council of the Town 
of Whitby adopted the following as Resolution # 50-24: 
 

Whereas residents are struggling with energy bill increases and need relief; and, 
 
Whereas natural gas is no longer the cheapest way to heat homes because 
electric heat pumps are now much more efficient, can provide all heating needs 
even in cold climates, and result in far lower energy bills compared to gas 
heating; and, 
 
Whereas natural gas is methane gas, which is a fossil fuel that causes 
approximately one-third of Ontario's GHG emissions, and must be phased out 
because it is inconsistent with all climate targets, while heat pumps result in the 
lowest GHG emissions and are consistent with a zero-carbon future; and, 
 
Whereas the Ontario Energy Board (OEB) decided to end a subsidy for methane 
gas pipelines to be built in new construction developments, effective 2025, 
finding that this would lower energy bills for existing gas customers and improve 
affordability for new homebuyers, but this decision is at risk of being overturned 
by the provincial government; and, 
 
Whereas the OEB decision will help lower energy bills and encourage heating 
systems that are consistent with climate targets and plans; and, 
 
Whereas the construction of new methane gas pipelines, which have 60-year 
lifetimes, should not be subsidized because they are inconsistent with the Town’s 
climate targets and will result in higher carbon emissions, higher energy bills, 
higher future decarbonization retrofit costs to phase out fossil fuel heating, and a 

53

mailto:premier@ontario.ca


Page 2 of 2 
 

continued financial drain as dollars leave the province to pay for fossil fuels 
extracted in other jurisdictions. 
 
Now therefore, be it resolved:  

1. That the Town of Whitby expresses its support for the decision of the 
Ontario Energy Board to end the gas pipeline subsidy and ask the Ontario 
Government to allow the decision to stand; and, 
 

2. That this resolution be circulated to Premier Doug Ford; the Minister of 
Energy, Todd Smith; the Minister of Finance, Peter Bethlenfalvy; the 
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, Paul Calandra; the Associate 
Minister of Housing, Rob Flack; President of AMO, Colin Best, the Region 
of Durham, and all local Ontario municipalities requesting support of the 
proposed changes. 

Should you require further information, please do not hesitate to contact Sarah Klein, 
Director, Strategic Initiatives at 905-430-4338. 
 

 
 
 
Kevin Narraway 
Sr. Manager of Legislative Services/Deputy Clerk 
 
Copy: C. Harris, Director, Legislative Services/Town Clerk – clerk@whitby.ca  
 S. Klein, Director, Strategic Initiatives – kleins@whitby.ca  

 
Honourable Todd Smith, Minister of Energy 
Honourable Peter Bethlenfalvy, Minister of Finance 
Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
Honourable Rob Flack, Associate Minister of Housing 
Colin Best, President of the Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
A. Harras, Regional Clerk, Regional Municipality of Durham 
All Ontario Municipalities 

 

54

mailto:clerk@whitby.ca
mailto:kleins@whitby.ca


 

 

 
 
March 26, 2024 

Sent by E-mail 
sylvia.jones@ontario.ca 

 

Hon. Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health 
Ministry of Health 
5th Floor - 777 Bay St. 
Toronto, ON M7A 2J3 

Re:  Public Health Ontario Labs 
______________________________________________________________________ 

Dear Minister Jones, 

At its regular meeting held March 12, 2024, the Council of the Township of Asphodel-
Norwood passed a resolution expressing concern about the possible closure of regional 
Public Health Ontario (PHO) laboratories, as stated in the Office of the Auditor General 
of Ontario's Value-for Money Audit: Public Health Ontario. 

WHEREAS the mission of Public Health Ontario (PHO) is to "enable informed decisions 
and get actions that protect and promote health and contribute to reducing health 
inequities", there are grave concerns that the closure of six community-based PHO labs 
will increase health inequities, especially for rural communities; and 
 
WHEREAS combined these labs collect and process thousands of water samples and 
time sensitive medical tests each day; and  
 
WHEREAS there are grave concerns about the integrity of samples being compromised 
if travel time is increased by centralizing all tests to a few locations; and  
 
WHEREAS these labs already process overflow tests and samples when labs such as 
Toronto and Ottawa cannot keep up to demand and many scaled up to meet demand 
during the COVID-19 pandemic; and  
 
WHEREAS frequent drinking water testing services is vital for Ontarians who draw their 
water from private drinking water systems (i.e. wells) and protecting groundwater quality 
and quantity is a shared responsibility. 
 
As stewards of care for the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2022, Council urges the provincial 
government to take caution against acting on the recommendations stated in the 
aforementioned audit report. 
 
 
 
 

55

https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/About/News/2023/12/Auditor-General-Report-2023
https://www.publichealthontario.ca/en/About/News/2023/12/Auditor-General-Report-2023


-2-

Sincerely, 

Melanie Hudson, Clerk 
Township of Asphodel-Norwood 

Encl./  Letter of Concern from former senior managers of Public Health Ontario (PHO) 

Cc: MPP David Piccini | david.piccinico@pc.ola.org 
MP Philip Larence | philip.lawrence@parl.gc.ca
Ontario Municipalities 

56

mailto:david.piccinico@pc.ola.org
mailto:philip.lawrence@parl.gc.ca
Melanie
Highlight



1 
 

Letter of Concern regarding Regional Public Health Ontario Laboratories 

December 18, 2023 

We, the undersigned, are a group of retired senior managers who were long term employees of Public 
Health Ontario (PHO), with extensive knowledge of regional laboratory operations and the public health 
system. We are writing to express our concerns with PHO’s laboratory modernization plan, discussed 
recently in the Office of the Auditor General of Ontario’s Value-for-Money Audit: Public Health Ontario 
(report dated December 2023).  

Our major concern rests with the recommendation to close 6 of the 10 regional, fully accredited 
laboratories based in Peterborough, Orillia, Hamilton, Kingston, Sault Ste. Marie and Timmins, which serve 
communities in 15 public health unit jurisdictions. This change will impact about 85 laboratory personnel 
and a number of Infection, Prevention and Control (IPAC) staff who are also housed in some of those sites. 
In addition to these closures, there is a concerning recommendation to gradually eliminate drinking water 
testing services for Ontarians who draw their water from private drinking water systems (e.g. wells). We 
believe the associated risks to public health were not properly analyzed during the investigative process 
and such measures, if approved by the Ontario government, could be detrimental.  

The regional laboratory sites serve all of PHO’s clients located outside the Greater Toronto Area (GTA). 
They act as a first contact when specific testing is required by public health units, hospital and community 
labs, long term care homes, clinicians and private citizens within their regions; and they provide access to 
over 270 diagnostic tests related to diseases of public health significance listed in O. Reg 135/18 under the 
Health Protection and Promotion Act. The high number of specimens processed during the COVID 
pandemic at these locations is a testament to the ability of these labs to respond quickly to emerging 
pathogens, to manage outbreaks and to assist with surveillance. 

The Auditor General’s report has a financial focus, and in this respect, inefficiencies are outlined which we 
acknowledge need to be addressed. However, PHO’s regional laboratory sites indicated for closure offer 
analyses requiring specialized training, such as the identification of parasites, ticks (important due to the 
increasing risk of Lyme disease), and pathogenic fungi. Having multiple sites competent in these specialty 
tests adds backup support into the system and enables the management of surge capacity, especially in 
outbreak situations. Two of these regional sites are also associated with postsecondary institutions, 
providing academic placements and research opportunities. 

In addition to the diagnostic testing of medical samples, regional laboratory locations conduct the majority 
of testing for indicators of bacterial contamination in private drinking water systems, as well as public 
drinking water and beach water submitted by Ontario Parks and public health unit staff, supporting their 
Safe Water programs under Ontario public health standards. With water samples being time and 
temperature sensitive, any increase in the transportation time can have a negative impact on sample 
integrity. The current geographical configuration of PHO’s laboratory network allows clients direct access 
to information and testing, and samples are transported from drop off depots in the communities quickly 
and efficiently. Loss of these regional labs could result in increased courier costs, increased turn-around 
times, and possible rejection of samples, due to integrity issues.  In short, their closing will have a direct 
and dramatic impact on PHO’s ability to achieve its mandate: the protection and promotion of public 
health. 

57



2 
 

PHO’s laboratory sites test between 150,000 to 175,000 private drinking water samples each year at no 
cost to the submitter. With the recommendation to phase out PHO’s drinking water service, private citizens 
who do not have access to municipally treated drinking water will have to submit their samples to a 
licensed private laboratory, which currently can cost more than $150 per sample. Considering the current 
economic state in Ontario, some residents may consider the cost prohibitive and decide not to monitor 
their water source, thereby reducing sampling rates.  As a result, people will be unaware of the quality of 
their drinking water, which can put them at a higher risk of contamination. Private drinking water sources, 
in particular, are susceptible to contamination at significantly higher rates than municipal systems.  With 
the removal of this testing service at PHO, there will also no longer be a centralized database containing 
bacteriological test results that are available for PHO’s researchers or public health unit staff, who use it 
to determine contamination rates in their regions.  

The Report of the Walkerton Inquiry (2002) discusses the tragic impact of provincial budget cuts on water 
testing services in the 1990s in Walkerton, Ontario. In 1996, the Ministry of Environment regional 
laboratories were closed as a cost saving measure, and the testing that they performed on municipal 
drinking water systems was privatized.  Justice Dennis O’Connor, who authored the Walkerton report, 
highlighted how this action “connected directly” to the Walkerton E.coli O157:H7  and Campylobacter 
jejuni outbreak in May 2000 (part 1, p. 406), which resulted in seven deaths and 2,300 illnesses. 
Recognizing the importance of the private drinking water testing service offered by Ontario’s public health 
laboratory sites, Justice O’Connor suggested that the province maintain free, bacteriological water testing 
for private well owners. 

Overall, we are concerned that, if the recommendation to close 6 of the 10 regional PHO locations and to 
phase out private water testing is approved, there will be serious negative impacts on public health. 
Rather than reduce health inequities across the province of Ontario, we feel the proposed changes will do 
the opposite. We caution the provincial government against acting on these recommendations without 
fully understanding the ramifications and the complex logistics required in specimen handling to deliver 
timely results. While the Auditor General’s report has a financial focus, which is important, we caution that 
an up-to-date, independent impact assessment be carried out using a public health focus. Stakeholders, 
including members of the public, should be consulted, as well. As we have seen in the past, an effective 
public health network is needed, not only to ensure essential day-to-day testing, but also to respond to 
emerging public health emergencies, such as Walkerton, SARS, West Nile and COVID. 

 

Key Resources 
O’Connor, Dennis R. (2002). Report of the Walkerton Inquiry. 2 parts. Toronto: Ontario Ministry of the    
 Attorney General. https://www.archives.gov.on.ca/en/e_records/walkerton/index.html 
  
Office of the Auditor General of Ontario. (2023). Value-for-Money Audit: Public Health Ontario. 

https://auditor.on.ca/en/content/annualreports/arreports/en23/AR_publichealth_en23.pdf 
 
 

Signatories 
Rena Retallick 
Former Operations Director, Regional Public Health Laboratories 
CONTACT: rena.retallick@gmail.com 
 
Jean Cousineau 
Former Technical Manager, Timmins Regional Public Health Laboratory 

58

https://www.archives.gov.on.ca/en/e_records/walkerton/index.html
https://auditor.on.ca/en/content/annualreports/arreports/en23/AR_publichealth_en23.pdf


3 
 

 
Elizabeth Pszczolko 
Former Manager, Thunder Bay Regional Public Health Laboratory 
 
John Jessop 
Former Manager, Sault Ste. Marie, Sudbury and Timmins Regional Public Health Laboratories 
 
Leslee Shuttleworth 
Former Manager, Ottawa Public Health Laboratory 
 
Robin Eddington 
Former Manager, Orillia Public Health Laboratory 
 
Cindy Froats 
Former Manager, Kingston Public Health Laboratory 
 
Pamela O’Brien 
Former Manager, Peterborough Public Health Laboratory 
 
Suzan Breton 
Former Manager, Sault Ste. Marie Public Health Laboratory 
 
Monica Murphy 
Former Quality and Technical Manager, Public Health Laboratories 
Former Manager, Windsor Public Health Laboratory 
 
Debbie Sikora 
Former Manager, Kingston Public Health Laboratory 
 
Doreen Graham 
Former Senior Manager, Central North Region 
 
Dr. Fred Ball 
Former Manager, Thunder Bay Public Health Laboratory 
 
Twyla Harcourt 
Former Manager, Peterborough Public Health Laboratory 

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



Recorded Vote Requested by: 

..................n/a....................................... 
Yea Nay 

J. Levesque ____ ____ 
T. Popkie ____ ____ 
L. Thomson ____ ____ 
R. Tripp ____ ____ 
R. Weir ____ ____ 

________________________________________ 
MAYOR

Declaration of Pecuniary Interest: 

...............n/a......................... 
Disclosed his/her/their interest(s), vacated he/her/their 
seat(s), 
abstained from discussion and did not vote 

Council Resolution Form 

Date: 21 Mar 2024 No: Resolution No.61-24 

Moved By: Councillor Popkie 
Seconded by Councillor Thomson 

Disposition: CARRIED. 

Item No: 12.1 

Description:  Cemetery Transfer/Abandonment Administration & Management Support 

RESOLUTION: 

That Council support the resolution passed by the Council of Tay Township during their December 20, 2023 
Council Meeting regarding the Provincial Cemetery Management Support Request, including that the 
Province through the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery and the Bereavement Authority of 
Ontario (BAO) consider several points of concern to assist municipalities with the growing concern of 
cemetery transfers; 

And furthermore, that a copy of this resolution and a copy Tay Township's resolution be circulated to the 
Honourable Todd McCarthy, Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery, Jim Cassimatis, BAO Interim 
CEO/Registrar, John Yakabuski, MPP for Renfrew-Nipissing-Pembroke, and all Ontario Municipalities. 

68



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
December 21, 2023 

 
Hon. Todd McCarthy 

Minister of Public and Business Service Delivery 
5th Floor 

777 Bay St. 
Toronto, ON M7A 2J3             

sent via email Todd.McCarthy@pc.ola.org 
Dear Hon. Todd McCarthy,  

 
Re: Provincial Cemetery Management Support Request – Tay Township 
 

Tay Township Council passed the following resolution during the December 20, 2023 
Council Meeting regarding the Provincial Cemetery Management Support Request:  

 
Whereas under the Funeral, Burial and Cremation Services Act, 2002 (FBCSA), 

when a cemetery is declared abandoned by a judge of the Superior Court 
Justice, the local municipality within whose geographic boundaries the land of 

the cemetery is located, becomes the owner of the cemetery with all the rights 
and obligations in respect of the cemetery and the assets, trust funds and trust 

accounts related to it that the previous owner or operator possessed; 
 

And Whereas over the last decade, there has been an increase in the number of 
churches and local cemetery boards initiating processes to transfer ownership or 

abandon their owned and operated cemeteries to the local municipality due to 
such issues as high maintenance costs, inaccuracy of records, lack of financial 
and human resources to effectively operate and maintain the cemetery, 

increased regulatory processes regarding training, selling of interment rights, 
financial operation of the care and maintenance fund, etc.; 

 
And Whereas municipalities experience the same issues and pressures that 

churches and local boards experience with the operation and maintenance of 
cemeteries within its jurisdiction, and additional transfers of cemetery lands 

only compound the burden on municipal taxpayers; 
 

And Whereas cemeteries are important infrastructure where the reasonable 
costs for interment rights, burials, monument foundations, corner stones and  

administration charges do not sufficiently support the general operation of 
cemeteries; 

Received December 21, 2023
C-2023-442

69

mailto:Todd.McCarthy@pc.ola.org


 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

And Whereas the interest earned from the care and maintenance fund(s) of a 
cemetery do not provide adequate funding to maintain the cemetery with the 

rising costs of lawn and turf maintenance contracts and monument restoration; 
 

Now Therefore Be It Resolved that Council of the Township of Tay requests that 
the Province through the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery and 

the Bereavement Authority of Ontario (BAO) consider the following to assist 
municipalities in this growing concern of cemetery transfers: 

 
- Amending the Funeral, Burial and Cremation Services Act, 2002 (FBCSA), to 

have the Province, through the BAO, identified as the default owner and 
operator of a cemetery when it is abandoned; 
 

- Provide annual funding (based on the number of cemeteries a municipality 
owns and operates) to municipalities to assist with the maintenance of inactive 

and active cemeteries; 
 

- Provide free training opportunities for municipalities regarding cemetery 
administration; and, 

 
- Investigate and support the design of universal cemetery software for use by 

municipal cemetery operators that can be offered at an affordable cost; 
 

And that this resolution be circulated to the Hon. Todd McCarthy, Ministry of 
Public and Business Service Delivery, Jim Cassimatis, BAO Interim 

CEO/Registrar, MPP Jill Dunlop and all Ontario municipalities. 
 
Sent on behalf of Tay Township Council. 

 
Yours truly, 

 
 

 
 

Katelyn Johns, MPPA 
Municipal Clerk 

 
Cc: Jim Cassimatis, BAO Interim CEO/Registrar, Hon. Jill Dunlop, Minister of Colleges 

and Universities/MPP, and all Ontario municipalities.  

70



71



72



73



ollLq

ocF

The Corporation of the Municipality of St. Gharles
RESOLUTION PAGE

Regular Meeting of Council

{genda Number: 10.3.

Resolution Number 2023-151

Title:

Date

Resolution Stemming from May 17,2023 Regular Meeting of Council (ltem_9.1 -
Correspondence #9 -and 15) and from the June 21,2023 Regular Meeting Council
(ltem 9.1 - Correspondence #1 9)

July 19,2023

Moved by:

Seconded by:

Councillor Loftus

Councillor Lachance

WHEREAS prior to being repealed by the Modernizing Ontario's Municipal Legislation Act, 2017,
Section 380(6) of the Municipal Act, 2001, allowed for a municipality to retiain surplus proceeds from tax
sales within their jurisdiction;

AND \;\1pIEREAS the cunent Public Tax Sale process is a burdensome prooess to a municipality that
invests a considerable amount of time and money recovering these proceeds for the potential sole
benefit of the Crown in Right of Ontario;

BE lT RESOLVED THAT Council for the Corporation of the Municipality of St.-Charles supports the
Corporation of the Town of Essex in the reinstatement of previous legislation that permitted
municipalities to apply for and retiain surplus proceeds from tax sales in theiriurisdictions;
AND BE lT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT this Resolution be circulated to the Ministry of Municipal
Affairs and Housing (MMAH); the Ministry of Finance (MOF); the Ontario Municipal Tax & Revenue
Association (OMTRA); the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO), the local Member of
Provincial Parliament (MPP); and, all Ontario Municipalities.

CARRIED

MAYO

74



From: TVT Corporate Assistant <corporateassistant@tayvalleytwp.ca>  
Sent: Thursday, March 28, 2024 9:28 AM 
To: TVT Deputy Clerk <DeputyClerk@tayvalleytwp.ca> 
Cc: TVT Corporate Assistant <corporateassistant@tayvalleytwp.ca> 
Subject: Council Direction - Resolution in Support of the Expansion of the Life Span of Fire Apparatus 
 
Council Meeting – March 26th, 2024 
 

i) Resolution in Support of the Expansion of the Life Span of Fire 
Apparatus. 

 
RESOLUTION #C-2024-03-20 
                                                                                   MOVED BY: Korrine Jordan 

                                                                                                                SECONDED BY: Andrew Kendrick 
 

“WHEREAS, the Council of the Corporation of Tay Valley Township support Prince 
Edward County’s resolution regarding Expansion of the Life Span of Fire Apparatus; 
 
AND WHEREAS, By-Law No. 2012-042, being a By-Law to Establish and Regulate the Fire 
Department (Drummond/North Elmsley Tay Valley Fire Rescue) established service level 
standards for the Drummond/North Elmsley Tay Valley Fire Rescue; 
 
AND WHEREAS, apparatus and equipment are directly tied to the delivery of fire 
protection services authorized by Council in By-Law No. 2012-042, and a safe, reliable 
and diverse fleet is required to serve operations needs; 
 
AND WHEREAS, fire Apparatus is governed by industry best practices, the application of 
law and recognized industry partners, including the Ontario Fire Service Section 21 
Guidance Notes, National Fire Protection Association Standards, The Occupational 
Health and Safety Act, and Fire Underwriters Survey (FUS); 
 
AND WHEREAS, Fire Underwriters Survey (FUS) is a provider of data, underwriting, risk 
management and legal/regulatory services focusing on community fire-protection and 
fire prevention systems in Canada, establishing  
apparatus replacement schedules based on safety and risk mitigation practices; 
 
AND WHEREAS, no provincial funding is available for new fire trucks, yet, small and rural 
municipalities must meet the same standards set by FUS as larger municipalities for fire 
equipment, including additional pressure to move fire trucks out when they reach a 
specific age, even though they can still meet the safety regulations; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Reeve send a letter to FUS requesting the 
creation of a new community fire-protection and fire prevention insurance system that 
does not put all municipalities under the same umbrella, with distinct categories for 
rural and urban municipalities; 
 
THAT, this resolution be sent to Premier Doug Ford, the Honourable David Piccini, 
Minister of Labour, Immigration, Training and Skills Development, Paul Calandra, 

75

mailto:corporateassistant@tayvalleytwp.ca
mailto:DeputyClerk@tayvalleytwp.ca
mailto:corporateassistant@tayvalleytwp.ca


Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing requesting a response on this matter within 
30 days of receipt;  
 
AND THAT, this resolution be shared with all 444 municipalities in Ontario, the 
Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FMC), the Association of Municipalities Ontario 
(AMO) and the Eastern Ontario Wardens’ Caucus (EOWC).” 

ADOPTED 
 
 

Brad Swayne 
Administrative Assistant – Corporate  
Tay Valley Township 
217 Harper Road, Perth, ON    K7H 3C6 
T: 613-267-5353 ext. 110  or 1-800-810-0161 
F: 613-264-8516 
E: corporateassistant@tayvalleytwp.ca 

www.tayvalleytwp.ca 

This email may contain privileged and confidential information intended only for the individual or entity 
named in the message.  If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the agent 
responsible to deliver it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination, 
distribution or copying of this communication is prohibited.  If this communication was received in error, 
please notify us by reply email and delete the original message. 

 
 

76

mailto:corporateassistant@tayvalleytwp.ca
https://url.ca.m.mimecastprotect.com/s/yYYNCWLJxRH5zGwcxLZNi?domain=tayvalleytwp.ca/


 

Simon Granat 
Legislative Coordinator 

Town of Newmarket 

395 Mulock Drive   

P.O. Box 328 Station Main  

Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 

Email: sgranat@newmarket.ca 

Tel: 905-953-5300 ext. 2207 

Fax:  905-953-5100 

 
 
March 26, 2024 

Sent to: ramela.garcia@autismontario.com  

Dear Ramela Garcia: 

RE: Proclamation and Flag Raising Request – April 2, 2024 – World Autism Day 

 

I am writing to advise that your proclamation request has been approved in accordance with the 

Council-approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the 

Town of Newmarket will proclaim April 2, 2024 as World Autism Day. Approved proclamations, 

lighting requests, and community flag raisings will be listed on the Town’s website. Approved 

lighting and community flag raisings will also be communicated to the public through the Town’s 

social media.   

In addition, the community flag pole located at Newmarket Municipal Offices (395 Mulock Drive) 

will fly your flag on April 2, 2024 to April 9, 2024 to recognize World Autism Day. Please note 

that we have received your flag. 

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Yours sincerely,  

 

 

Simon Granat 

Legislative Coordinator 
 

 

77

mailto:ramela.garcia@autismontario.com
https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf


 

Office of the Mayor  I  Town of Newmarket  I  395 Mulock Drive  I  PO Box 328 STN Main  I  Newmarket, 

ON  I  L3Y 4X7 

Phone. 905-953-5300 x.2000  I  Fax. 905-953-5102  I  Email: jtaylor@newmarket.ca 

 
March 26, 2024 

 

Sent to: ramela.garcia@autismontario.com  

 

Dear Ramela Garcia: 

 

RE: Proclamation and Flag Raising Request – April 2, 2024 – World Autism Day 

 
On behalf of the Town of Newmarket Council I am pleased to recognize April 2, 2024 as 

World Autism Day.  

In addition, the community flagpole located at the Newmarket Municipal Offices (395 

Mulock Drive) will fly your flag on April 2 to 9, 2024 

 
Thank you for submitting your request and for your contributions to the community.   
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 

 

 
 
John Taylor 
Mayor 
 

78

mailto:ramela.garcia@autismontario.com


 

Simon Granat 
Legislative Coordinator 

Town of Newmarket 

395 Mulock Drive   

P.O. Box 328 Station Main  

Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 

Email: sgranat@newmarket.ca 

Tel: 905-953-5300 ext. 2207 

Fax:  905-953-5100 

 
 
March 27, 2024 

Sent to: eden.clark@cancer.ca 

Dear Eden Clark-Campbell 

RE: Lighting Request – April 8, 2024 – Canadian Cancer Society Daffodil Month 

 

I am writing to advise that your proclamation request has been approved in accordance with the 

Council-approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the 

Town of Newmarket will illuminate the Riverwalk Commons and Fred A. Lundy Bridge located on 

Water Street in yellow on April 8, 2024 to recognize Canadian Cancer Society Daffodil Month. 

Please note that the lighting will occur from sunset until 11:00 PM.   

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned. 

Yours sincerely,  

 

 

Simon Granat 

Legislative Coordinator 

 

 

79

https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf


 

Simon Granat 
Legislative Coordinator 

Town of Newmarket 

395 Mulock Drive   

P.O. Box 328 Station Main  

Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 

Email: sgranat@newmarket.ca 

Tel: 905-953-5300 ext. 2207 

Fax:  905-953-5100 

 
 
March 27, 2024 

Sent to: Jennifer.doolan@cdhi.org 

Dear Jennifer Doolan: 

RE: Proclamation and Lighting Request – April 19, 2024 – Congenital Diaphragmatic 

Hernia Awareness Day 

 

I am writing to advise that your proclamation request has been approved in accordance with the 

Council-approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the 

Town of Newmarket will proclaim April 19, 2024 as Congenital Diaphragmatic Hernia Awareness 

Day. Approved proclamations, lighting requests, and community flag raisings will be listed on the 

Town’s website. Approved lighting and community flag raisings will also be communicated to the 

public through the Town’s social media.   

In addition, the Riverwalk Commons and Fred A. Lundy Bridge located on Water Street will be 

illuminated in pink on April 19, 2024 to recognize Congenital Diaphragmatic Hernia Awareness 

Day. Please note that the lighting will occur from sunset until 11:00 PM.   

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned.  

Yours sincerely,  

 

 

Simon Granat 

Legislative Coordinator 

 

 

80

https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf


 

Office of the Mayor  I  Town of Newmarket  I  395 Mulock Drive  I  PO Box 328 STN Main  I  Newmarket, ON  I  

L3Y 4X7 
Phone. 905-953-5300 x.2000  I  Fax. 905-953-5102  I  Email: jtaylor@newmarket.ca 

 
March 27, 2024 

 

Sent to: Jennifer.doolan@cdhi.org 

Dear Jennifer Doolan: 

 

RE: Proclamation and Lighting Request – April 19, 2024 – Congenital 

Diaphragmatic Hernia Awareness Day 

 
On behalf of the Town of Newmarket Council I am pleased to recognize April 19, 2024 as 

Congenital Diaphragmatic Hernia Awareness Day.  

In addition, the Riverwalk Commons and Fred A. Lundy Bridge located on Water Street 

will be illuminated in pink on April 19, 2024 from sunset until 11:00 PM.  

Thank you for submitting your request and for your contributions to the community.   
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 

 

 
 
John Taylor 
Mayor 
 

81



 

Simon Granat 
Legislative Coordinator 

Town of Newmarket 

395 Mulock Drive   

P.O. Box 328 Station Main  

Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 

Email: sgranat@newmarket.ca 

Tel: 905-953-5300 ext. 2207 

Fax:  905-953-5100 

 
 
March 27, 2024 

Sent to: Ericka.aguilera@canadahablaespanol.org 

Dear Ericka Aguilera: 

RE: Proclamation Request – April 23, 2024 – Spanish Language Day 

 

I am writing to advise that your proclamation request has been approved in accordance with the 

Council-approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the 

Town of Newmarket will proclaim April 23, 2024 as Spanish Language Day. Approved 

proclamations, lighting requests, and community flag raisings will be listed on the Town’s website. 

Approved lighting and community flag raisings will also be communicated to the public through 

the Town’s social media.   

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned.  

Yours sincerely,  

 

 

Simon Granat 

Legislative Coordinator 

 

 

82

https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf


 

Office of the Mayor  I  Town of Newmarket  I  395 Mulock Drive  I  PO Box 328 STN Main  I  Newmarket, ON  I  

L3Y 4X7 
Phone. 905-953-5300 x.2000  I  Fax. 905-953-5102  I  Email: jtaylor@newmarket.ca 

 
March 27, 2024 

 

Sent to: Ericka.aguilera@canadahablaespanol.org 

Dear Ericka Aguilera: 

 

RE: Proclamation Request – April 23, 2024 – Spanish Language Day 

 
On behalf of the Town of Newmarket Council I am pleased to recognize April 23, 2024 as 

Spanish Language Day.  

Thank you for submitting your request and for your contributions to the community.   
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 

 

 
 
John Taylor 
Mayor 
 

83



 

Simon Granat 
Legislative Coordinator 

Town of Newmarket 

395 Mulock Drive   

P.O. Box 328 Station Main  

Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 

Email: sgranat@newmarket.ca 

Tel: 905-953-5300 ext. 2207 

Fax:  905-953-5100 

 
 
March 28, 2024 

Sent to: anais.lemoine@ehac-asec.ca 

Dear Anais Lemoine: 

RE: Lighting Request – May 9, 2024 – Multiple Chemical Sensitivity Awareness Day 

 

I am writing to advise that your proclamation request has been approved in accordance with the 

Council-approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the 

Town of Newmarket will illuminate the Riverwalk Commons and Fred A. Lundy Bridge located on 

Water Street will in yellow on May 9, 2024 to recognize Multiple Chemical Sensitivity Awareness 

Day. Please note that the lighting will occur from sunset until 11:00 PM.  Approved proclamations, 

lighting requests, and community flag raisings will be listed on the Town’s website. Approved 

lighting and community flag raisings will also be communicated to the public through the Town’s 

social media.   

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned.  

Yours sincerely,  

 

 

Simon Granat 

Legislative Coordinator 

 

 

84

https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf


 

Office of the Mayor  I  Town of Newmarket  I  395 Mulock Drive  I  PO Box 328 STN Main  I  Newmarket, ON  I  

L3Y 4X7 
Phone. 905-953-5300 x.2000  I  Fax. 905-953-5102  I  Email: jtaylor@newmarket.ca 

 
March 28, 2024 

 

Sent to: anais.lemoine@ehac-asec.ca 

Dear Anais Lemoine: 

 

RE: Lighting Request – May 9, 2024 – Multiple Chemical Sensitivity Awareness 

Day 

 
On behalf of the Town of Newmarket Council I am pleased to recognize Multiple Chemical 

Sensitivity Awareness Day by illuminating the Riverwalk Commons and Fred A. Lundy 

Bridge located on Water Street will be illuminated in yellow on May 9, 2024 from sunset 

until 11:00 PM.  

Thank you for submitting your request and for your contributions to the community.   
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 

 

 
 
John Taylor 
Mayor 
 

85



 

Simon Granat 
Legislative Coordinator 

Town of Newmarket 

395 Mulock Drive   

P.O. Box 328 Station Main  

Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 

Email: sgranat@newmarket.ca 

Tel: 905-953-5300 ext. 2207 

Fax:  905-953-5100 

 
 
March 27, 2024 

Sent to: heather.coates@lupuscanada.org  

Dear Heather Coates: 

RE: Proclamation Request – World Lupus Day 

 

I am writing to advise that your proclamation request has been approved in accordance with the 

Council-approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the 

Town of Newmarket will proclaim May 10, 2024 as World Lupus Day. Approved proclamations, 

lighting requests, and community flag raisings will be listed on the Town’s website. Approved 

lighting and community flag raisings will also be communicated to the public through the Town’s 

social media.   

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned.  

Yours sincerely,  

 

 

Simon Granat 

Legislative Coordinator 

 

 

86

mailto:heather.coates@lupuscanada.org
https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf


 

Office of the Mayor  I  Town of Newmarket  I  395 Mulock Drive  I  PO Box 328 STN Main  I  Newmarket, ON  I  

L3Y 4X7 
Phone. 905-953-5300 x.2000  I  Fax. 905-953-5102  I  Email: jtaylor@newmarket.ca 

 
March 27, 2024 

 

Sent to: heather.coates@lupuscanada.org 

Dear Heather Coates: 

 

RE: Proclamation Request – May 10, 2024 – World Lupus Day 

 
On behalf of the Town of Newmarket Council I am pleased to recognize May 10, 2024 as 

World Lupus Day.  

Thank you for submitting your request and for your contributions to the community.   
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 

 

 
 
John Taylor 
Mayor 
 

87



 

Simon Granat 
Legislative Coordinator 

Town of Newmarket 

395 Mulock Drive   

P.O. Box 328 Station Main  

Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 

Email: sgranat@newmarket.ca 

Tel: 905-953-5300 ext. 2207 

Fax:  905-953-5100 

 
 
March 28, 2024 

Sent to: abrooks@lupusontario.org 

Dear Anne Brooks: 

RE: Lighting Request – May 10, 2024 – Lupus Awareness Day 

 

I am writing to advise that your proclamation request has been approved in accordance with the 

Council-approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the 

Town of Newmarket will illuminate the Riverwalk Commons and Fred A. Lundy Bridge located on 

Water Street will be illuminated in purple on May 10, 2024 to recognize Lupus Awareness Day.  

Please note that the lighting will occur from sunset until 11:00 PM.   

Yours sincerely,  

 

 

Simon Granat 

Legislative Coordinator 

 

 

88

https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf


 

Simon Granat 
Legislative Coordinator 

Town of Newmarket 

395 Mulock Drive   

P.O. Box 328 Station Main  

Newmarket, ON   L3Y 4X7 

Email: sgranat@newmarket.ca 

Tel: 905-953-5300 ext. 2207 

Fax:  905-953-5100 

 
 
March 28, 2024 

Sent to: admin@fibrocanada.ca 

Dear Trudy Flynn, 

RE: Proclamation Request – May 12, 2024 – Fibromyalgia Awareness Day 

 

I am writing to advise that your proclamation request has been approved in accordance with the 

Council-approved Proclamation, Lighting Request and Community Flag Raising Policy, and the 

Town of Newmarket will proclaim May 12, 2024 as Fibromyalgia Awareness Day. Approved 

proclamations, lighting requests, and community flag raisings will be listed on the Town’s website. 

Approved lighting and community flag raisings will also be communicated to the public through 

the Town’s social media.   

In addition, the Riverwalk Commons and Fred A. Lundy Bridge located on Water Street will be 

illuminated in purple on May 13, 2024 to recognize Fibromyalgia Awareness Day.  Please note 

that the lighting will occur from sunset until 11:00 PM.   

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact the undersigned.  

Yours sincerely,  

 

 

Simon Granat 

Legislative Coordinator 

 

 

89

https://www.newmarket.ca/TownGovernment/Documents/Proclamation%20Lighting%20and%20Community%20Flag%20Raising%20Policy_V004.pdf


 

Office of the Mayor  I  Town of Newmarket  I  395 Mulock Drive  I  PO Box 328 STN Main  I  Newmarket, ON  I  

L3Y 4X7 
Phone. 905-953-5300 x.2000  I  Fax. 905-953-5102  I  Email: jtaylor@newmarket.ca 

 
March 28, 2024 

 

Sent to: admin@fibrocanada.ca 

Dear Trudy Flynn, 

 

RE: Proclamation Request – May 12, 2024 – Fibromyalgia Awareness Day 

 
On behalf of the Town of Newmarket Council I am pleased to recognize May 12, 2024 as 

Fibromyalgia Awareness Day.  

In addition, the Riverwalk Commons and Fred A. Lundy Bridge located on Water Street 

will be illuminated in purple on May 13, 2024 from sunset until 11:00 PM.  

Thank you for submitting your request and for your contributions to the community.   
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 

 

 
 
John Taylor 
Mayor 
 

90


	Agenda
	1. Aurora OP 1.pdf
	2. Loyalist 1.pdf
	3. The Township of Puslinch council resolution 2024-037 regarding Social and Economic Prosperity Review.pdf
	3. Resolution 2024-067 - Social and Economic Prosperity Review.pdf
	4. CHSW_Residence_compro_municipalitiesLetter.pdf
	4. rd_chimney_swift_e_corr.pdf
	5. Resolution 2024-93 - Support for Township of Amaranth - Operational budget funding - 031924.pdf
	6. RC24069 - Pausing Advancament on Proposed Highway 413.pdf
	7. RC24067 - Guranteed Livable Income.pdf
	8. RC24068 - Urgent Need to Increase Funding to Libraries and Museums.pdf
	9. Yonge Street Improvements, Davis Drive to Green Lane - Project Update.pdf
	9. Yonge Street Newsletter_Spring 2024 (2).pdf
	10. Yonge Street Project Update and Spring Newsletter_ Towns of Newmarket and East Gwillimbury.pdf
	10. Yonge Street Newsletter_Spring 2024 (1).pdf
	11. Resolution 2024-15 Cemetery Transfer-Abandonment Administration.pdf
	12. MSC.pdf
	13. Resolution - Twip of Adelaide Metcalfe - Tile Drain Loan Amount.pdf
	14. R2024-061- Support Tax Credit Increase for Volunteer Firefighters - March 25 2024.pdf
	15. ltr_corr_Correspondence 2024-87 - Region of Peel - Supreme Court of Appeal in Sudbury v. Ontario (Ministry of Labour).pdf
	16. ltr_corr_Memo- WSAC - Ontario Energy Board's Decision to end the Gas Pipeline Subsidy.pdf
	17. 03-12 Concern re potential PHO Laboratories.pdf
	17. Former Senior Managers of Public Health Ontario - Letter of Concern re Closure of Peterborough Lab.pdf
	18. Resolution - Township of Terrace Bay - Energy Transition.pdf
	19. Resolution - Township of Terrace Bay - OGRA  ROMA combined.pdf
	20. Resolution - Township of Terrace Bay - PEC.pdf
	21. Access to Natural Gas Letter to MPP.pdf
	21. Access to Natural Gas Resolution.pdf
	22. Resolution 61-24.pdf
	23. Resolution of Support Greater City of Sudbury.pdf
	24. Ltr to the Mun. of St. Charles - Resolution - Support Municipalities Retaining Surplus from Tax Sales.pdf
	24. Communications-St Charles-Support Municipalities Retaining Surplus from Tax Sales.pdf
	25. Tay.pdf
	1. World Autism Day - Letter.pdf
	1. World Autism Day - Mayor Letter.pdf
	2. Cancer Daffodil Month - Letter.pdf
	3. CDH - Letter.pdf
	3. CDH - Mayor Letter.pdf
	4. Spanish Language Day - Letter.pdf
	4. Spanish Language Day - Mayor Letter.pdf
	5. MCS - Letter.pdf
	5. MCS - Mayor Letter.pdf
	6. World Lupus Day - Letter.pdf
	6. World Lupus Day - Mayor Letter.pdf
	7. Lupus Awareness Day - Letter.pdf
	8. Fibrmyalgia Awareness - Letter.pdf
	8. Fibrmyalgia Awareness - Letter - Mayor.pdf

